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Abingdon Learning Trust

Abingdon Learning Trust Trustees’ Report (continued)

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's: report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a irustees’ report, and a direciors' report and strategic report under company law.

The Academy Trust operates as an academy for pupils aged 4 to 19 predominantly serving a catchment
area in north Abingdon. Abingdon Learning Trust operates 1 primary and 2 secondary academies in
Abingdon, Oxfordshire. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 2436 and had a roll of 2117 in
the school census of January 2022.

Structure, govérnance and management
Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
trustees of Abingdon Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The charitable company operates as Abingdon Learning Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details.

Members" liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company
in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted
before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ indemnities

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. ltis not possible to quantify the Trustees and
Officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

The Members may appoint by ordinary resolution up to 18 Trustees. The total number of Trustees,
including the Chief Executive Officer if they so choose to act as Trustee under Article 57, who are
employees of the Academy Trust, shall not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees. Members
have decided not to appoint the CEO as a Trustee in order to keep separation between governance and
the irust's operations, and ensure accountability, reflecting good practice as a Trust.

When there is a vacancy for the position of Member, Trustee or Local Governor, the current skills of the
group are reviewed and positions advertised in the local community and wider with recruitment material
making clear what is required in the role, and what particular skills and experience are being sought. Our
commitment to diversity and inclusion is reflected in our search for new members of governance, as it is
in our Recruitment Policy.

Trustee appointments are preceded by a request for a CV, pre-appointment checks (e.g. DBS and s.128)
and supported by a meeting between the candidate, Chair of Members and Chair of Trust Board (or their
appointment substitute) to ensure that applicants understand the responsibilities of the role and bring the
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Abingdon Learning Trust

skills, experience and aptitudes needed to fill the position. If multiple applications are received for a single
vacancy this meeting can take the form of a selection interview.

Under Article 100 Trustees have appointed Local Governing Bodies (known as Local Academy Boards
(LAB)) for each Academy in the Trust. Terms of reference (determined by the Trustees under Article
101), set the constitution of the LABs with Trustees appointing up to 12 Governors with a further 2 Staff
Governors and up to 2 parent governors (Article 101A). The Headteacher/Head of School is not a
governor, mirroring the CEO not being a trustee to retain separation of leadership and governance.

LAB Parent Governors are usually elected but can, if the number of parents, or individuals exercising
parental responsibility, standing for election is less than the number of vacancies, be appointed by
Trustees (Article 54).

The elected or appointed Parent Governors and those voting for these positions must be a parent, or an
individual exercising parental responsibility, of a registered pupil at the Academy overseen by the LAB at
the time of the election/appointment, but may not also be an employee at that academy.

The term of office for any Trustee and Local Governor shall be four years. Subject to remaining eligible
to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected at a General Meeting
or at an Annual General Meeting.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Recognising the importance of strong and effective governance, the Trust places importance on Trustee
induction and on-going training.

All Trustees receive regular training needs assessments on induction and then at least annually, to help

identify training requirements which the Trust delivers in a blended offer combining in-house sessions

with external options New Trustees receive information on how the Trust is structured, to key personnel

and to documents including specific information on safeguarding responsibilities, and meet with both

CEO and Chair of the Trust Board individually. Under the Code of Conduct, every member of the Trust’s
governance community makes a commitment to attend at least one training event each year and to attend

at least one event at a school.

In addition to subscriptions to the National Governors Association (NGA) and the Confederation of School
Trusts (CST) for advice and guidance, including newsletters to support ongoing learning, the Trust has
an active Training Network and provides regular Governance Journals with information and advice.
During the reporting period training continued online with the Trust subscribing to the NGA Learning Link
facility to extend the range of online training events available to support Trustee and Governor
development.

The training programme for 2022/23 included Induction, Safeguarding, Understanding School Data and
Appeal Panels briefings.

Trustees are encouraged to attend additional courses linked to their areas of interest, development and
responsibility.

During the reporting period training courses moved back to face to face but was blended with NGA e-
learning, this included induction, health and safety for governors, strategic safeguarding, Ofsted

inspection updates and tailored training, exclusion panel hearings, and continued training on compliance,
safeguarding, Prevent and safe recruitment.

All involved in governance completed the NCSC Cybersecurity training.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)
Organisational structure

Abingdon Learning Trust currently has three schools in the Trust, with a governance structure which
consists of the Members, Board of Trustees (with three committees), a Secondary Board with the two
secondary schools and a Local Academy Board (LAB) for the primary school, the executive (including
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Operating Office (COQ), Chief Technical Officer (CTO), Secondary
Director of Education (DSE) and a central team (Head of Finance, Trust Business Manager, Finance
Assistant, Admin Administrator, Payroll and HR Administrator, Facilities and Estates Manager) and a
" Head and Leadership Team in each school.

Trust Board

Educational

F&GP (Incl Audit} |- Standards

Compliance |

Secondary Board Rush Common Ceo
LAB
1
f 1 ]
' : Secondary
Fitzharrys LAB John Mason LAB coo Education Director, cro

\— Central Team

The aim of the strategic leadership structure is to delegate and devolve responsibility, promote
involvement in decision making and ensure accountability with separation in roles at all levels. The Chief
Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer. In ling with ik Trust's intent thai Heads end their LABs run
their own schools, (if not requiring intervention), the scheme of delegation assigns substantial powers to
school-level decision making and is annually reviewed to ensure it remains fit for purpose and meets any
new statutory requirements.

There are three Trust committees-Finance and General Purposes (which is also the Audit Committee);
Educational Standards, and Compliance. Each has its own Terms of Reference outlining specific
responsibilities. The Terms of Reference for the Trust Board are clearly defined by the Articles of
Association.

The Trustees are responsible for setting overall policy, adopting the recommended business and Trust
improvement plans and approving budget both for the central team and in each school, monitoring the
schools’ use of budgets and other deta, and meking malar decisions abou the direction of the schools,
capital expenditure and staff appointments.

The Trust's Execulive comprisas the CEO {pari-time), COO, CTO (part-time) and Director of Secondary
Education (DSE). Each has distinct areas of responsibility, and accountability is through the committees
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of the Trust Board. For example, the COO through the F&GP committee and the DSE through the
Educational Standards committee. Each school has its own executive - the Headteacher leading in each
school. There are regular cross-Trust executive meetings ensuring effective communication between the
SCMPME executive teams and the Trust executive team.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel, such as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), and the schools' Heads, are
currantly empléyed following the School Teachar's Fay and Condilians Documanl (8TPCD 2021, with
salary bands that are set according to the guidelines in the STPCD. Annual review based on performance
related assessment, is undertaken by the DSE and two LAB governors for the Heads in the secondary
schools; by the CEO and two local governors for the Headteacher in the primary school; by the CEO for
the Director of Secondary; and, a Member and two Trustees for the CEO.

The Chief Operating Officer is engaged and reviewed following the Green Book regulations, and the
salary is benchmarked against the annual Kreston Academies Benchmark Report. There is an annual
appraisal and review.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time  equivalent employee
officials during the relevant period number

5 491

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees

0% 5

1%-50%

51%-99%

100%

Percentage pay bill spent on facility time
Provide the total cost of facility time £1,222
Provide the total pay bill £9,427,047
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on 0%

facility time, calculated as:

(total cost of facility time + total pay bill) x 100

Paid trade union activities
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Time spent on paid trade union activities such as a 0%
percentage of total paid facility time hours calculated
as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by
relevant union officials during the relevant period +
total paid facility time hours) x 100

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
Abingdon Learning Trust does not have any connected organisations or related party relationships.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The annual trust-wide survey took place in the spring which provides feedback on the Wellbeing and
Workload Charter that has been in place since 2019. Responses were positive with Heads and staff
taking on particular areas for improvement specific to the schools.

The trust-wide union group continued to meet regularly with the CEO, providing an opportunity for policy
and procedure to be consulted on and discussed. The meetings provided the opportunity for union
perspectives and policy to be discussed across the breadth of the schools and irusi's work.
Representatives from support and teaching unions from all three schools attend and have made active
contributions during the year e.g. to policy reviews.

The Trust's Recruitment Policy and all HR pglicies explicily support the receipt of applications from
disabled persons; the steps that will be taken to support employees who become disabled; and the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons is monitored through the Compliance
Committee and the annual HR report to the Board.

Additionally, the Trust became a Disability Confident employer, registered with DWP, and has again
reviewed the Recruitment Policy with the Equality and Diversity Leads in schools to ensure that it both
attracts and retains employees in order to better reflect the pupil population and national society.

Requests for disabled staff to talk to trust executives about their experiences provided useful feedback
and, as a result, a new post to listen to, signpost sources of support and advocate for disabled staff will
be advertised for the 23/24 year.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy
trust

Abingdon Learning Trust fosters strong working relationships with all companies that we engage with.
By ensuring thai any suppliors and customers undersiand the Trusl's eilvs and the individual naiure of
all our schools, we hope that through working in partnership with them, all parties will benefit from the
relationship that is forged. The Trust follows due process with regard to tendering for contracts, looking
where possible to contract for between 3 and 5 years to ensure that any relationship has time to develop.

The Trust will take reasonable steps to ensure our suppliers comply with our standards relating to the
Trust carbon net zero strategy reviewing their environmental responsibility, safeguarding, health and
safety, data protection, human rights and ethics. In 2022/23 the Trust engaged with a tendering process
for cleaning, one of the important attributes was their move towards carbon net zero. The Trust engaged
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Abingdon Learning Trust

Opcharge and have installed EV chargers across all three schools, this is for use by staff and the
community.

During 2022/23 a PSDS3a bid was successfully delivered with the installation of air source heat pumps
at Fitzharrys School.
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Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The Objects of Abingdon Learning Trust are described in the Articles of Association as:

a. the advancement, for public benefit, of education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, managing and developing
schools offering a broad and balanced curricutum; and

b. to promote, for the benefit of the inhabitants of Oxfordshire and the surrounding area the provision of
facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such facilities
by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic
circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the objective of
improving the condition of life of those inhabitants.

We adapted our aims and objectives in the light of our commitment to securing a Net Zero Carbon Emission
position by 2035.

Our aims:

a. We will nurture curiosity, character and independence, fuelling a passion for learning in ali children
and staff to shape confident, creative, resourceful and resilient individuals.

b. We will support and deploy resources effectively and efficiently to make a valued contribution for
the good of all our young people, our economy and our community.

c. To achieve this we will secure:

* A broad, deep and balanced curriculum enabling choice and inclusive learning opportunities,
promoting aspiration and with educational initiatives that build a reputation for high quality
education on climate related issues.

»  Financial sustainability and commercial resilience, with operational efficiency and effectiveness,
meeting our Net zero emission ambitions across our organisation,

+  Expansion of the Trust to support the majority of school age children in the Abingdon area; and to
support investment in community provision, shared use of facilities, learning opportunities and
networks.

Our values

QUALITY: to create an outstanding learning community, including strong leadership and governance.
OPPORTUNITY: to provide the best opportunities for all children to reach their full potential.
COLLABORATION: to support a shared commitment and dedication to learning.

AMBITION: for continual improvement and to strive for excellence in all we do.

COMMUNITY: To be an active participant in our community, leading and supporting initiatives for the benefit
of all.

Short to medium improvement goals, informed by risk assessments and audits, are set annually via
Education and Operational improvement plans and Project objectives. These typically centre around
educational standards, financial sustainability, community (national and local) support, legislative change
and strategic goals.

Objectives, strategies and activities
During 2022/23 our priorities continued to be to focus on pupils with SEND and disadvantaged pupils in the trust,

and particularly on improving attendance and reducing persistent absenteeism. At the same time, ensuring that
all pupils were supported to progress and achieve well.
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These objectives have been progressed through local improvement plans, cross-trust collaborations,
research and strategies particularly focused around attendance, support for vulnerable groups and long-term
investments.

During 2022/23 we have:

set high targets for individuals and our schools

worked with students and parents to encourage regular school attendance

supported local governance where requested, with additional resource and expertise

delivered staff and governance training targeted at improvement priorities and supporting
professional development and succession, and .

e used external reviews, including an External Review of Governance, to inform and develop our work
through professional challenge and advice.

Our facilities have been fully open to community groups with recent improvements in facilities bringing about an
increase in their use. Our relationship with Rush Common Preschool has led to the merger of the Preschool with
the Trust from 1 September 2023, extending the age range of Rush Common School from 4-11 to 2-11.

Dunmore Preschool, who had been renting a space at Fitzharrys School decided to close in July and the Trust is
now exploring how best to ensure that the community need for preschool places is supported, in liaison with
Oxfordshire County Council.

Public benefit
The Trustees of Abingdon Learning Trust have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance
on Public Benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties. The activities

undertaken to further the Abingdon Learning Trust's purpose for the Public Benefit include:

Providing an education that:

. is broad and balanced;

. promotes equality and celebrates British Values and the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical
development of pupils at the school and of society;

. prepares pupils at the school for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life;

. promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and understanding of specific

areas of study, skills and expertise.

The Abingdon Learning Trust admission criteria follows the requirements of the Code for Admission, which
explicitly supports equal access to the schools for all children, including Looked After or previously Looked
After; those with SEND.

The Trust welcomes applications from all children who live in the community and who meet the admissions
criteria.

Trust schools provide advice for families about safeguarding, on-line safety and wellbeing for families
regularly, with clear signposts to government and charity resources that can be accessed and used at home.
This last year, this information was supplemented by sources of support and aid to help families and staff
with the cost of living crisis.

Abingdon Learning Trust provides additional support to other local schools and schools within Oxfordshire,
and beyond, through a variety of formal and informal ways. For example, support to a Trust in Herefordshire
of a primary and secondary schocl, and in 'sponsoring” a local prejact with 2 primary schooks leoking at the
engagement of pupils with SEMH, and with 4 other local schools on developing alternative provision
opportunities.

We have maintained our engagement with and support for local schools including providing
premises/caretaking support, advice on safeguarding and health and safety. We continue to provide catering
services to a number of local primary and special schools.
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Placements for trainee teachers from Oxford University and Oxford Brookes University are offered along with
School Centred Initial Teacher Training students and work experience students. Links with employers for our
own siedents’ work placements and experience have been refreshed bringing » range of opporiuniies back
to KS4 and post-16 programmes.

The Trust actively engages in charity work at a local and national level, through a range of themed activities,
events and special days throughout the year in its schools.

School pupils continue with their work on Duke of Edinburgh activities, provided Remembrance service
support in the town, and staff provided expert training in Safeguarding to schools in Oxfordshire.

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Introduction and overview of the 22/23 academic year

We are still seeing the impact of the pandemic, especially in the lack of return to normal attendance seen
nationally for some students. A cross-Trust attendance strategy has been implemented, which is having
some impact, and this will continue into 23/24 with a particular focus on disadvantaged students.

Safeguarding activity and management and governance remains a strength, with increasing robustness of
our H&S culture.

Rush Common Preschool, an independent preschool, formally joined the Trust as part of Rush Common
School at the start of the new school year 23/24, with a capital refurbishment of the bungalow on the school
site in progress for a 1 January 2024 move to being fully on site. The primary school has changed its age
range to 2-11 from 4-11.

During the year we said goodbye to the Director of Secondary Education, who moved to a promoted post, to
the Headteacher at John Mason School, and to the Acting Head at John Mason School who has gone onto
substantive Headship elsewhere. We welcomed a new Director of Education to the Trust.

Key successes

With the much publicised return to pre-pandemic standards for public examinations in the secondary phase,
we were pleased with the outcomes for students.

Fitzharrys School was inspected by Ofsted and received a very paositive report affirming many strengths and
that the school remained good, having been last inspected in 2016, before it joined the Trust.

Successes this year include significantly better than national outcomes at KS2 in Rush Common Schooal,
with very high value added, improving on the very impressive 2022 results.

Fitzharrys School year 11 students achieved positive value added with outcomes above those in 2019, (the
year that this exam season has been based on prior to the pandemic).

At John Mason School, the proportion of top grades was near national with strong value added in French,
Geography and Computing.

In the joint sixth form provision across Fitzharrys and John Mason Schools, JMF86, A level outcomes enabled
the majority of students to secure places at university, and apprenticeships with top companies.
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At both GCSE and A level there were some extremely impressive individual sludenis® performances.

The Trust commissioned an external review of governance by the Confederation of School Trusts (CST). It
found that the Board discharged its duties effectively with the skills and expertise necessary to govern the
trust and its schools well. In the spirit of continuous improvement, local governance continues to be a focus
for the Trust.

We were selected to be audited twice in 2023! The first was on the use of the Low Carbon Skills Fund grant
of just under £30k received in the previous year, and the second on Financial Management and Governance.
Both audit outcomes were very positive demonstrating that internal control and processes are robust and
that money is spent as intended.

Our Net Zero work continues and is detailed further on in this report, and the £1.12M grant from the Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme was completed.

With continued reliance on supplemental online learning and for communication, all school staff, governors
and trustees completed the NCSC cybersecurity training again to ensure that this remains a clear priority for
the Trust. The move to one single Managed Service Provider has benefited the schools and trust-working
significantly with greater consistency in filtering and in provision of regular monitoring data.

The use of financial benchmarking has continued to enable effective financial management, allowing the
board to approve a substantial central school improvement budget for 2022/23, without a change to staff or

resQurces at the Wonlline’. This budget = avallable for targeted school improvement work or for Heads and
LABs to request further resource to support their own spending.

In 2018, we set ourselves the target to have a total staff spend below 76% in schools and this is moving
towards the target without loss to frontline numbers or quality. Savings have been put back to support
schoals’ priorities. It is important to note that teacher supply has been a challenge this year, and appointment
of support staff has also been more difficult than in previous years.

The Trust's {ocus on safeguarding continues with the trust-wide group providing support to DSLs, Heads
and safeguarding governors providing an opportunity to stay connected with others, sharing good practice
and evidancing the Trust's 'stronger together' motie. A similar H&S nelwork brings support and a greater
consistency to this critical area of work in the schools.

We have maintained trust-wide appointments of site staff and where suitable, teachers, bringing together
available sums of money within individual school budgets to appoint much needed additional colleagues.
Similarly, we have adapted the support available through the Central Team to the schools over the year in
line with requests and feedback.

This was the second year of a 3 year fixed price deal where all energy in the Trust has been either from
renewable energy sources or fully carbon offset. This has buffered school and Trust budgets from the
significant inflationary costs of energy in the year.

Financial KPlIs

The majority of the Abingdon Leamning Trust's incoma is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The
grants received from the ESFA during the twelve months ended 31 August 2023 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

In accardance with the Charilies Stalement for Recornmended Praciice ‘Accounting and Reporting by
Charities’ (SORP 2019) capital grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income
in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges
over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.
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During the twelve months ended 31 August 2023, total expenditure of £14,831,482 (including depreciation
of £900,946) was less than recurrent grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources of
£15,378,009.

As at 31 August 2023 the net book value of fixed assets was £27,245,460 and movements in tangible fixed
assets are shown in note 14 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing
education and the associated support services to the pupils of Abingdon Learning Trust.

The Local Government Pension Scheme as at 31 August 2023 held a deficit of £795,000, the breakdown of
which is detailed within note 24 in the Financial Statements.

Key performance indicators

A range of KPIs have been agreed by the Board with evaluation ranges set to target performance above
national averages. Assessments against the KPIs are available to the regular meetings of the Board to
support monitoring and impact assessments through the year.

Educational standards:

Fitzharrys School was inspected by Ofsted and received a very positive report affirming many strengths and
that the school remained good, having been last inspected in 2016, before it joined the Trust.

Successes this year include significantly better than national outcomes at KS2 in Rush Common School,
with very high value added, improving on the very impressive 2022 results.

Fitzharrys School year 11 students achieved positive value added with outcomes above those in 2019, (the
year that this exam season has been based on prior to the pandemic).

At Johnh Mason School, the proportion of top grades was near national with strong value added in French,
Geography and Computing.

In the joint sixth form provision across Fitzharrys and John Mason Schools, JMF6, A level outcomes enabled
students to secure places towards their chosen career paths - at university, and into apprenticeships with top
companies.

At both GCSE and A level there were some extremely impressive individual students® performances.

Attendance in the schools overall is either at or above national levels but there are some groups of students,
especially in the secondary phase, where attendance levels are far lower than the overall figures. The
recently introduced attendance strategy in the secondaries shows early signs of improvement but this
remains a priority area for the next year - to get attendance of every pupil to at least national levels.

Inclusion of all students in the secondary sector remains the main area of challenge and focus for the Board
where, despite some improvements in attainment, gaps in the achievement of groups of pupils remain,
although not at the level seen nationally.

Operational efficiency:

Increased financial efficiency has been possible through savings derived from joint procurement, shared
staffing across the schools and using national benchmarks to support budget setting at school level. This
has resulted in a trust-wide school improvement fund for use by schools, retained staffing levels in the schools
and enhanced support from the central team.

The intake into John Mason School remains around the available Pupil Admission Number (PAN), with the
intake into Fitzharrys continuing to rise, demonstrating the increased popularity of the school. Numbers into
Recaptien al Rush Common School are now at PAN, reflecting the community's truat in the school &s its
reputation for its great quality of education the school is increasingly widely known. Whilst the number of
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spare pupil places available across the Trust is reducing, there remains capacity at Fitzharrys especially and
in the sixth form.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company

The Trusi's objaciives are io advance for the public benefit education in 1he United Kingdom, mainsaining,
carrying on, managing and developing schools which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum. Over the
course of the academic year the outward facing aspects of the Trust were refreshed with new websites for
the Trust and Rush Common School. A presentation to the Abingdon Partnership of Schools shared the
outcomes of the joint projects that the Trust sponsored for the wider benefit. The Trust became a member of
the B4 business network to extend its influence as a major employer in Abingdon.

Financial review

Abingdon Learning Trust practices through its Board, namely the Board of Trustees and the constituted
subcommittees, risk management principles. Any major risks highlighted at any sub-committee are brought
to the attention of the main Board with proposed mitigating actions and they continue to be reported until the
risk is adequately mitigated.

The Board of Trustees accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of its operations but maintains an objective
not to run unacceptable levels of risk in any area. The subjective nature of this process requires major risks

o be resolved by the Boasd of Trusiees collectively, whilsi more winor risks are deatl wilh by the trusi's
Executive. A Risk Register is maintained and reviewed at regular intervals.

Reserves policy

The policy of Abingdon Learning Trust is to maintain a sufficient surplus to uphold the following year's budget
against financial uncertainty and then to transfer recognised surpluses to reserves for investment. The
Reserves policy states; Each school within the Trust and the Trust Central Team, will work towards reserves
of one month’s salary costs and contingency requirements over the next 3-5 years, (primarily from
Unrestricted Funds) to be agreed by the Trust Finance Committee.

At 31 August 2023 the total funds comprised:

2023

£
Unrestricted 739,592
Restricted fixed asset funds 27,555,520
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General Annual Grant (GAG) 363,722

Pension reserve (795,000)

Other restricted funds (including Salix loan) (55,246)
27,808,588

The deficit on the pension reserve relates to the non-teaching staff pension scheme where, unlike the
isachars’ scheme, separate assels are held o fund fuiursliablliles a8 QISCUSSSY in nota 24, ThE dRIICH CAMN
be met in the longer term from any combination of increased employer or employee contributions, increased
government funding or changes to scheme benefits. The restricted funds will be spent in accordance with
the terms of the particular funds. Unrestricted funds are for use on the general purposes of the Academy, at
the discretion of the Trustees. The aim of the Trustees is to increase this reserve to meet future working
‘capital requirements.

Funds have been allocated to the redevelopment of school bungalow into a preschool with expected costs
around £200k (including grant from Christ's Hospilal of Abingdon, and transfarved reseryer from Rush
Common Preschool, as well as Trust reserves), upgrade of school maintenance at Fitzharrys of £50k, further
planned work on sports courts across the secondary schools of £100k. Within the reserves there is a carry
forward balance for £310k which is ringfenced for school capital activities.

Investment policy

Abingdon Learning Trust seeks to invest surplus funds in a manner to obtain the best possible return
consistent with prudent minimisation of risk and with strategic plan of the Trust for deployment of resources.
The Trust is committed to investment with reputable and ethical investors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust Board has implemented a risk management strategy to promote the identification and management
of thregis and unceriainfies which threaten ihe Trusd's viston and objectives. School and Trust risk registers
are used to set out and monitor steps taken to identify risks. Registers are regularly reviewed to ensure they
remain up to date and effective. Areas of particular focus are:

Educational: the performance of pupils and students is a key indicator of the trust delivering its charitable
objects, complying with the ESFA funding agreement and meeting the needs of students and the local
community. If standards are not met this leads to risks of poor opportunities for students, intervention by
Regional School Commissioner and or declining rolls with subsequent impact on funding.

These risks are mitigated by
e A focus on the recruitment, training and development of staff as we know that great staff have
the biggest impact gn pupils’ learning;
e Continual monitoring of pupil and student performance so that they are supported to achieve
their best;
e Active use of the Tru$l's school improvement fund and staff to invest in projects that support
individual school and cross-trust improvement work.
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Financial: operating schools within budget to consider cost pressures and changing needs in order to ensure
the long-term sustainability of the Trust and avoid risks to the standard and continuity of provision.

These risks are mitigated by

e Building generous increase assumptions into early budget submissions, particularly to consider
uncertainties around the costs of supplies, utilities and staff pay rises.

e Contract management to secure best value and protections against price rises

e Accessing grant funding to secure investments e.g. premises improvement, net zero
developments;

e Continual monitoring of spending against budgets and projections to understand and manage
variations.

Reputational: risks of injury, financial penalties and loss of community confidence (with potential financial
impacts through falling rolls) arise if the Trust is not able to meet legal, social and ethical responsibilities
including ensuring that pupils, staff, property, systems and data are kept safe and the Trust s able to respond
positively to changing statutory and social needs.

These risks are mitigated by
e Strategic planning to identify and plan for change, including for example
o Rapid development and use of ICT to support teaching and operations: addressed
through the Teusi's ICT strategy
o Increasing reliance on online systems alongside cybersecurity threats to the
educational sector; addressed through rollout out of Cyber Essentials Standard over
the next 2 years and routine staff training in both GDPR and cybersecurity
e Continual monitoring and regular use of external audits and reviews to assure compliance and
promote continual improvement
e Purchase of appropriate advice and insurance e.g. RPA scheme to provide legal support and
funding if required. '

Estates management: Abingdon Learning Trust has an Estate Strategy which provides the framework and
direction for a Trust vision that will be delivered over a 3 to 5 year period whilst being reviewed annually. The
Finance and General Purposes Committee will monitor and report to the Trust Board on the progress that is
made in delivering the Estate Strategy and understand the role of the estate in helping to meet educational
objectives.

Abingdon Learning Trust strives to create safe, exciting and inspiring learning spaces for our pupils, both
indoors and outdoors, further enhancing their educational experience. The Trusts continuously improves the
resilience of our school estates, both land and buildings, leading improvement projects and the day to day
running of the estate to enable school leaders to focus on creating academic excellence in their settings. The
Trust is consistently promoting innovation in energy efficiency, links to the curriculum to aid learning and are
committed to seek new ways in which to build sustainability, thereby reducing our carbon footprint so that we
can meet our net zero ambitions by 2035, and ultimately creating a better future for our children.

This estates and facilities management plan is designed to make sure that we manage our estate to achieve
our charitable objectives. Strategic estate management helps the trust to:

¢ Make decisions supported by evidence
. Use our resources effectively
e  Maximise the estata’s value to the trust

To manage the trust estate strategically we must:

e Understand what we need to do with the estate to meet our education goals
Have good governance arrangements

Assign clear responsibilities across the trust for managing the estate

Make and implement plans; and

Review and track performance
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In order to make sure the Trust is compliant with all legal and other requirements, we carry out the following

actions:

e  Regular compliance checks in school by school staff which are tailored to the needs of the individual

schools estate. These are recorded on our estate compliance system.

e Regular compliance checks in school are carried out by a competent contractor, where this is required by
legislation or Policy. These are recorded in our estate compliance system.

¢ Regular audits of compliance carried out either internally or externally and recorded in our estate
compliance system.

* Reporting of compliance to be considered by the Board of Trustees, at local academy committee and by
the head teacher of each school

* Inthe event non-compliance is identified, an action plan is put in place to return our estate to full compliance.

This year the school has commissioned external surveys to confirm there is no RAAC in the estates. Where
there are larger projects related to roof work, CIF bids will be submitted again in December 2024.

Fundraising

Fundraising i% linked to the Trusi's underpinning valses of community, opporiuniiy and ambition. Pupils 3nd
students raise money for a variety of local and national causes. Funds are raised in each school through a
range of activities suitable to the setting. This year has seen a start to the return to the usual levels of activity
in this area as pandemic restrictions were removed. School Councils are involved in identifying the charities
that money is raised for each year.

The majority of fundraising takes place through directly supervised activities. No complaints were received
and due care was taken to protect vulnerable pupils and adults from any potential harm during fundraising
activities.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Key to our "vilug #dded’ as a Trust, both within and beyond our schools, are our Net Zero Carbon ambitions:

1.

2.
3.

Being Net Zero Carbon in our Scope 1 and 2 emissions by the end of one school ‘generation’ of pupils*
by 2028;

A 50% reduction in our Scope 3 emissions by 2028;

Being Net Zero Carbon in our Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions in two generations of school pupils by 2035.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
Although we are not required to report on this, we do as part of our commitment to reaching our net zero

goals.

Consump GHG emissions -
tion
2022-
kWh

tCO2e per annum

Fitzharrys Electric 233,235

Fitzharrys Gas 709,489 130
175

John Mason Electric 108,405 21
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John Mason Gas 963,337 175
196
Rush Common Electric 41,975 8
HH
Rush Gas 218,365 40
Common
48
ALT - GH emissions 419
- Tons tCO2e per
annum
Number of
Students 2125

Overall. the Trust's carbon inlensily rafio has increased compared to the previous year, due (o iha increase
in electrical consumption after the installation of the air source heat pumps. We should see this being offset
across time by a reduction in the use of gas.

We undertook a large scale ICT project to migrate school-based server function to the cloud. This has had
the impact of reducing the energy usage by around 80% in this area with the added benefit of reducing the
embedded carbon, silicon and rare earth metals used by the schools in the former server equipment. There
is an additional saving through the associated removal of air conditioning energy use in the server rooms.

At the whole Trust level, we have undertaken the second analysis of catering emissions over a 3 week period
in January 2023. We were surprised to see that the C intensity had increased! As a result we have reviewed
menus to reduce the use of frozen vegetables and pork products. We will undertake a similar analysis in
January 2024 to see how this effects C emissions.

We have also replaced one Trust vehicle with an electric one from diesel.
Our electricity switched in October 2021 to fully renewable-sourced, and all gas use continues to be offset.

We were successful in a grant of over £1M to decarbonise heating at Fitzharrys School, from the Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme. The project, which included the installation of air source heat pumps
completed in the summer of 2023 and wifl bring about a reduction in C use of 64% by 2028.

Each school has undertaken work in this priority area in the last 12 months:
Rush Common School

We are continuing to place emphasis on climate change in our Geography curriculum through our progression
of knowledge and understanding of climate change from Reception to Year 6. In Year 5, children carry out a
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project in which they learn about climate change in more depth, analyse the carbon emissions of the school,
and create a plan to reduce this.

Last year we ran an eco-club alongside our school parliament. As a result of their work, new crisp packet bins
are in various locations in the school, so that they can be collected and appropriately recycled. The club have
also raised awareness of the importance of not wasting energy (for instance turning off lights when not
needed), through a poster campaign. Last year Fiona Hammans, visited the eco-club to have a valuable
discussion about what was happening at Trust and school level.

In October 2022, Friends of Rush Common (FoRC) were nominated in the Net Zero category at the Big
Sustainability Awards in Southampton. They were shortlisted as a finalist for reducing waste as a charity over
the past year. This was achieved through the list below.

Reducing the use of plastic, specifically single use plastic.

Using secondhand items as prizes.

Selling secondhand items as fundraisers

Opting for selling fully recyclable materials (i.e. aluminum drinks cans rather than plastic drinks bottles)
Buying items that benefit communities

Selling secondhand uniform, halloween costumes and christmas jumpers

Holding a Plastic Tat Amnesty for prizes for the summer fete

Giving out plantable medals for the colour run

Selling predominately recyclable cans at the fete

Using reusable cups at the discos rather than disposable cups

Fitzharrys School

The School has supported a number of activities in support of the Trust's Net Zero Ambitions:

Carbon Research

This year, we had 2 groups of year 9 researchers working on projects linked to reducing our carbon footprint.
One, was continuing the work started the previous year, investigating how students come to school. They used
a different methodology and found that about 60% of our student body walk or cycle to school. This is close to
what was found last year. It would be great to install new bike sheds to encourage more students to cycle to
school.

The second project looked at the temperature in our classrooms and they fund that students overall think that
classes are too cold except for a few too hot ones (the ones with more sun). As space heating amounts to 17%
of the United Kingdom carbon dioxide emissions (https://es.catapult.org.uk/guide/decarbonisation-
heat/#:~:text=How%20much%20does%20heating%20contribute,amount%200f%20co0ling)%20%3D%2017%25
), our students suggested that the next steps for our school would be to allow individual blocks or classrooms

to control the temperature individually, rather than controlled over the whole school. This would allow the
blacks that have a higher natura! temperature 10 shut off the heating eadlier, FeduCing Ouf SCROQES CafHon
footprint. This technology already exists in the form of thermostats that are controllable at a room-by-room
level, there are even companies that can tailor for schools {https://heatboss.co.uk/our-sectors/schools-

nurseries/).
Rewilding

Over the last 12 months, we have:

® maintained the 30 trees we planted last year
e planted a further 30 trees at the front of school, with the help of the local community
® taken steps to turn both of these areas into meadow spaces
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e significantly improved the wildlife value of the pond, by removing a prolific invasive species, reshaping
and relining, building a bog garden, and planting in all three pond sections

e experimented with additional wildflower spaces, and continued to develop our pollinator habitat with
additional planting

e built additional nesting spaces for solitary bees, and created hoverfly lagoons, alongside last year"s
work on creating nature-rich habitat for bugs

We have had, thus far, two main objectives, which are: to enhance the wildlife value of our spaces in school,
focusing in particular on invertebrates in the knowledge that these will support other species; and to foster
community engagement in wildlife and nature, so that our young people and families have opportunities to
engage in the work and understand what they can do at home. The movement is starting to gather momentum
and our next step is to create a more substantial three-year plan for sustainability and Wild Fitzharrys.

John Mason School

The eco-team of students from Key Stage 3, 4 and 5 have been successful in getting JMS accredited as an Eco-
school and we will proudly fly the green flag on site. Students were thrilled to be invited to the Annual Meeting
and Mayor Making at St Helen's Church in Abingdon. They were invited there to recognise their efforts
towards the Abingdon Schools' Blodiversity project. The award was presented by Mayor Andy Foulsham and
they received £500 which will be put towards new equipment, more plants and anything that will be able to
promote biodiversity at JIMS this academic year.

As part of the application to be known as a ‘Green school’, Year 8 students came up with the "Ecocode’ for
team JMS. This will be rolled out across the school throughout the academic year. Bug hotels and bird houses
were built and then the site team put them up around the school in the appropriate areas, to benefit the
wildlife across the JMS site.

A group of students were taken to a climate conference at Stowe School, where they met MPs and TV
personalities such as Chris Packham, all of whom had a climate message for them. Students learned about the
‘Patchwork rainfarest’ project. This project idea was emailed to parents who then bought areas of land 10
protect them from deforestation and to promote sustainability of our natural world worldwide.

To inform our students about the importance of reducing our carbon footprint students undertook lessons on
sustainability and resource usage. STEM visitors were invited in to talk to our students about how they can be
sustainabie with our food, water and energy wse daily at home and at school. Anne Smart from ‘Abinadon
against plastic’ did an assembly to all students on how to reduce the use of single use plastics.

The eco-club organised many second-hand clothing events where students came and to avail of the free
uniforms and other school clothing and equipment. This initiative has the aim of reducing the problem of fast
fashion, and helping families who may struggle with the cost of living across the UK at present.

Across the year guest speakers visited JMS to talk about sustainable regeneration of areas. Groups of students
entered a nationwide competition called 'My Environment, My Future' - which one of the groups won. This
competition had more than 800 entries nationwide.

The Humanities faculty are introducing the "My Environment, My Future’ project as part of the curriculum in
KS3 and 4 curriculum to challenge our students' current thinking in these areas.

Plans for future periods

Objectives for the coming year fall broadly into three strands:

Educational:
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For the next academic year, the focus is on inclusion - ensuring that every pupil and student attends regularly,
progresses in their learning and is supported to achieve their best.

Pupils who have SEND and/or are in receipt of the pupil premium grant, continue to be prioritised in all
schools. In the next year, an effective cross-trust strategy is to be developed and implemented, with
individual school adaptations, to ensure that we are able to target the right support to pupils as they need it
and make reasonable adaptations to enable all pupils to make strong progress and achieve their potential.

To provide additional resource into this area, the School Improvement Budget will be deployed according to
a needs assessment, to each school, under the direction of the Director of Education (DoE).

To bring the learning about what works for us in school improvement terms, the DoE will be leading the
Heads and their teams in bringing together a school improvement strategy for the Trust that can be readily
understood and implemented as required. '

Operational:

In order to further develop our staff, so that they can continue to have a positive and effective impact on our
pupils and students, we have developed our professional pathways programme. We will enhance our offer,
for professional growth, including the opportunity for secondments and work shadowing, both within and
beyond our Trust, when appropriate.

With all schools and the central team now on one ICT domain and cloud-based servers across the trust, this is
the first year that we can begin to realise the opportunities and power for teaching and learning, curriculum
development and administration and operations through one system. Increased security and access will support
staff in this, as we move further towards a net zero position and for positive impact on learning, and working.

We will continue to work in partnership in our communities to add value through the work of the Trust, as well
as seeking opportunities to grow so that we have the size, talent and quantum of resource to invest in all of
our schools to ensure a great education for every child and young person.

Strategic:

Developing our-local offer to lead and make an active contribution to collaborative work through a partnership
programme that helps raise standards and creates opportunities for students and staff beyond the three
schools in the Trust.

In time, and as opportunity arises, our plans include growing the number of primary schools to bring a greater
balance in numbers between the primary and secondary phases within the Trust.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
Neither Abingdon Learning Trust nor its Trustees are acting as custodian Trustees.

Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:

« there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s. auditor is unaware

» the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees' report, incorporating & sirateglc repori. was approved by order of the boadd of russiees, asihe
company directors, on il and signed on the beard's bahalf by:
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J Hopking

Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT {UTC +0)

Jonathan Hopkins
Chair of Trustees 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE §TATEMENT

Scope of responsibillty

As Trusiees, we acknowiedge we have overali-responsibility for ensuring that Abéngdon Leaming Trusi has an
effective and appropriate system of coniral, financial and otherwise. Howaver, such a system is designed 10
manage rather than eliminale the risk of fatlure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and noi absotute assurance against material misstalement ar ioss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and faken accouni of the guidance in DIE's Governance: Handbook and
Academy Trust Handbook and competency framework for govemance.

The Board of Trusieas has delegated the day-lo-day rasponsibilily te the Chiel Executive Dilicer, as accounting
officar, for ensuring financial controfs conform with the requiremenis af both propriely and goed financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned o Il in the funding
agregmeni betwoen Abirgdon Learning Teusl and the Sccrafary of State for Education. They sra also
responsible for repasting to the board of Trustees any malerial weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

Abingdaon Leaming Trust — Diversily Stalemeni.
In considering diversily in refation to the wider governing bady (Members, Trusiees amd Local School
Coveenerg). The Teual hes o aumber of objeclives:

1.  To ensure ihat ihere is 8 divevsity of skills experlise and life experence within the governing body which
enable robus! discussions and informed holding to account of the Trusi's execulive leam

2. To kvoadly raflect the community it serves;

3. That, rotwithsianding the make up o the widar governing body, there are siructuras and processes within
nlace 1o ensurg that diversily i¢ propery considered in govarnanca for the banafil of all pupfls in our schools.

The Trust nodes ikat under GDP Regulaiions seme diversily questions couni a3 'special category’ data. Given
ihe size of ihe govering bady this would inevitably lead to ina ideniification of individual govemors. The Trust
ihorofore chooses nod te publish divarsity data on ils aovaring bodvy, — — .

Doas tha Trusl have a ramge of skills axpertise anc life experience within the goverring body?

The goverming bodies alk take accoun! of the need lor experience in parlicular areas for eflactive govesnance,
These are explicily considered by Govarning bodies whan recruiting for new govarnoes. Recommendations for
Local Academy govemor appoiniments are scrutinised by Trustees and recommendations for Trustee
appaniments are scrutinised by Members.,

There are requiresments for calegories of governor (parents) bulll info ihe Articles of Associaiion of the Trust.
These sequirements are met by the election of parent and staff governors onto school governing bodies by the
&iaff and parent communities,

Recruilment of governors walcomes people with a diverse ranga of backgrounds, Where appropriale,
recreitment titerature will indicate the kind of skills, interest, or experience that the Trust is looking for.

The Trust usas a variely of recndiment meihods to atiract new govermors:

Pareni and Siaff elecied governors;
Naftional govemance recrultment sarvicos g.g. Govarnars for Scheols to provide broadih;
Pe el nelavihg,

Doas tha governing body reflect tha cc_mnmun’it_y if serves?

The Trust measures liself ‘against tha data prubmned by the Vals of White Horge[1] (VoWH). The Trust

recogmisas that with a relatively small governing bedy i is easy for one.of two people [o upsat the balance In
relation to {ha widaer mmmunlty and il has therefora exercised fudgement in maasuring iteglf against the
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Governance (continued)

informsticn tor Vo'WH

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
JA Company Limited by Guarantee)

Vala of While Hoeze Criterion Measuro

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

Trust compansion

Ethnicity

Age

Gender

Raligion

VoWH is 915 ethnically while

Papulation pyramid

Tha gander spfit for VoWH iz 80 434
wnanan and 48.8% man

In VoWH the largest groups are
Chrigtian  48.6% and Qiher
(Enchading none) 48.2%

The Trusl is very closalyin line valh
this fligura

The age profife of those involved in
govermance i3 alder than he
distribution foe the afes as a whol.
This reflects tha facis that

Governors are all sduils (though
taking pupils’ views Ino account is
an axplicit resporsibfity  for
governing hodies and a ramge of
methods are used 0 do this);

PG PAGAT Grovp valfun governance
is clightly cider boeause of the
Thel's peimaneseeongary Balince,
Note that this dess make 1he
Goveraing body marg
representative of the schools”
communities.

There are mode women han men kn
the Trust govesning body bul given
that each governor represenis over
2% of lhe govarnor populalion he
balance is reasonably
repraseniative.

The Trust doas not axplicitly collect
dala on religion but is broadly in lne
with the figures fof the aes,

Doos the Trest have structurcs and procosses N place 10 6nsure that Oivarsity §s properny considerad jn

governance?

Somo Trusioes and all school govornors have portfelio roles which allow thom to develep deopor undorstanding
of diffarani areas of divarsily a.g.. Inclusion governors congides tha issues relaling io loocked afler chitdran. SEN
QavEmers oncounier a ranga of diverss sludants,

Paranis wilh experience of SEN childran are regular applicants for and are appointed lo govarnor salae.

There is a series of aciivilies wilhin the scheduled governance calendar which give governors the opporiuniiies
i uwndiarséend the expevience of pupils within their schools. Thesa ara basad on:

- Anglysis of data e.g., allendance. behavicur, and oulcomes dala are all iMerrogated so that govennars can
untersiand tha pedarmance of echools in refalion 1o aspects of diversily;

- Personal visits to schools which indlude discussions with stafl and pupls;

- Revieve of policies and the actions taken io implement them e.g. in retation to PSHE policies and pragrammes;
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Feadback from siakeholder aroups — paspils, parents, and staff.

The Trust does use tha questions: conizined in datailed diversdy questionnaires as a prompl lo ensure thal
those invalved in governance aro - aware of diversily issues and can séck additional support as apgropriata.

¢hifllenges for the Trust in relation to diversity

The Trust is currenily centred on just three schools within the Abingdon area, The pool of tnistees/govemnors is
heavily poputated by people from the lecal area. There are diversity considerations related to the Trusis growth
pfans, Theseinclude:

mednmmamw s:aculﬂn.z _.

- Consideration of how the Trust would adapi to teking on schools cutside the immediaie Abingdon area. Thisig
less likely to be an issue for school governing bodies, hul I3 a consideration for the make up of the Boasd.

- Vale of VWhite Horsa Demoaranhics, Age, Ethnicity, Refigion, Wellbelng (varbes.com)

Skills based appointments and claar delagation 30 ihe three Trusl commiltess and school Local Academy
Boasds ensures lhat the Board is well placed to sup;port and challenge the éxpansibn of tho Trust without
compromising scruliny and suppor for the high ambitiens for ts current schools,

Local School governoes wede mora abie to- visil their schools (han in the Jas! 2 years and focus was on  reviaws
of sa(@guardmg health and salaty and educatlunal! iimpeavemeni. We held an apen warkshap 1o bring govarnors
and trystees together in Oclobeér, and again in December, following the remole working 1hat had characterised
ne lasl two years.

The delayed Exiernal Reviaw of Governance look place providing affirrmation of the strengihs colleclively seen
on the Trust Board and indicaling areas for enhanced governance acioss the schoals and the Board. Taking full

advantage of this, a new structure - Ihe same for aach phase ard school was implemented in Saptember 2023,
huilding amn the review and what has worked well in previous years.

To support effective oversight and assuranca the Trusi cormmissioned external audils 10 assess strenglhs and
improvement priorities in educational siandards in each school, the new Chart of Accounts and cybersecurity.
Cfsted vigited Fitzharrys Sehool and Tha resultant repodt gave sirong extemal support foe 1he imprevemant seen
Al the school in recant years.

All rusfeas and governars anncally miake declarationg of interest wilh dedsils held on registess used 1o ensure
mal no conﬂicts of Inieraaﬂ arf‘ma parilculezrly wlth regem m cl'sclalon mabcing: projec:t of pmcmemant adlvliy Aﬂ

meatmg Whare such aeﬂamtmm are made !ruateera,rga'vemors may be encluded fmm diEcussions am-:ﬂ
docisions,
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ABINGDOMN L EARNING TRUST
(A Company LImited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The commiliee and reporiing siruclures in place suppori the Board's continued focus on four mdin areas of
wogk:

i. Raising aducalional siandards: particulalry fccusing en the perfermanca of disadvaniaged pupils (ivose in
reeoipt of the pupil prémium and pupils with SEND) and looking to siangihan secondary provision through
coltaboration, alignment and best Use of CUTen! TeSOUECES,

2. Ensuring compliance and good preclice: using fisk management procedues suppared by exlernal audis,
internal ravigws and exceplion raporting to identify and shara sivangihs and iargel improvameant plans al
priorilies with a particudar foeus on safeguarding, health and salely, eybersecuriiy and GDPR.

3. Financial stability: looking lo secure long fevf susisinabiity through good financial and HR manageantent (o
achigve qualily and value for monsy frem Trust contragis and services and effeciive succession planning,

4.  Communily growih: working with pariners to strengihen and axtend the Trust's contfibution 19 suppon and
create opportunities for pupil and siafl deveolopment and work toward sharcd communmity objeciives
including academy grawih and nel zere.

Continued fraimang on appeintment ihrough a planned induclon programme for mew irusiees and logal

. governcrs, alongside specilic and targeted fraining is in place. The trust ansures membership of he NGA for all
involved in governance and CST for trustees. The new school governance struciure has enabled discussions to
leke place in schools and clarily aboul what 8 governor does in different rodes and collectively was shared,

With the appoinimient of & deputy Governanes profassional the suppori and advice for gavernance has  Boen
irnprovied and regiliance devaloped as a redull,

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trusieas' Report and in the
Blatement of Trusiogs' Rosponsibilibes,

Tne Board ol Trustees has formaliy met 5 limes during the year, Robusl oversight of funding and progress js
maintained through three commiltees and three Local Academy Boards, one for each member School.
Additionally, an overarching Secondary Board has a scrutiny role for the two secondary LABS, with the aim.of
promoling ‘joinl working for student advantage and staff effectiveness. Responsibililies and activiiies for each
graup are set out below:
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ABINGDOMN LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Astendance during the vear ai meeiings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trusieo Meatings atlended QOun of a possithe
J Hopkins, Chair 3 5
J Browneng 3 5
L Fathers 4 S
M Nga 4 5
R Dougall 3 5
G Chfion 5 5
H Darcy 5 3
J hlilaom 4 5
T Watls 5 5
D Young 1 2
Finance Committes:

Purposeé: s ip ensure tha highest possible standarde are aat and maintained acress the Academy Trust by

* Holding Exacuiive Leaders {o accouni for the qualtly of financial (including premises} managemeni across
the Trust

o Scrulinising, reviewing, and whera delegaied autharity is given, determining on bohalf of the Board ilems of
buginess defegated lo it undes the Scheme of Détegation

 Advising the Board on ihe adequacy and effectiveness of the Trust's systems of financial managément and
inteenal control, its arrangaments for risk management and securing economy, efficiency and effacliveness
{value for money). Scrutinise and repart on academies’ performance including, but not resiricted 1o, data
ralating 10 financial pedformance and premises managedment.

Adienedared during ha yoor at seebivgs was a3 fallows:

Trugiae Mestings attanded Oui of a possibla
J Browning 4 5
M Npa 4 5
T Walls 5 5
J Milsom 3 5

Educational Standards (ES):

Purposa: is 1o ensure iha highest possible educational standards are sét and maintainséd acrass the Academy
Trust.

e Holding Executive Leaders lo account for the quality of education across the Trust

e Secrinising, reviewing. and wheve delegated authority is given, determining on behalf of the Board items O
business deleqated o it under the Scheme of Delegation

* Advising the Board o the adequacy and quality of the Trust's educational provision

* Scrlinising and reporting on academies’ performance including, but mot restricted fo, data relating to
studenl alfainment and progress
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ABINGDON L EARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantae)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (coniinued)

Compliance |C):
Purpoae: is to manitar on bahall of it Board complianes with sinlutory requiremenisincdduding:

o requirements fof infermation sharing such as GIAS, websites, Freadom of Information reguesis and
Truslfschool responsaes; Health and S'.alety, sgleguasding and data prodection (GOPR) requirements:
Funding Agreamants; @ffecliveness and.impact of polities and monitos effectiveness of govesnancs across
all levels in the Trusl.

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chigf Executive Officer has responsibilily for ensuring thal the Academy delivers

-~ goed value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer undesstands that valuve for money refers to the
educational and wider socistal oulcomés achieved in relurn for Lhe laxpayer rescurcas received.

Tha Accounting Officer considers how the Academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each acadaric year. and aports to the board of Tru,,teas where \'Ehlue tor mme'y can be improved.

d@lwﬂ-r’od lmpmvﬂd vmluo for t‘hér’mr duwmg lha ymr by

‘The joimt sixth form - JMFE - continues t0 have strosg destinations for studants to 10 univesrsities and
chosen carger paths.

* Increased Tinancidl efficiency thfough savings derved frorm joind procuremant, shared staiting across the
schools and using national benchmarks to suppart budget selting at school jevel. This has resulted in a
near doublifig of a trust-wida schoal improvement fund, relained staifing fevels'in tha-school and erhanced
support from the centeal. team.

e The PSDS bid was revised ldflowing furiner review to £1.148m has been complsled and rmanaged within
budgst, with an agreéd contribution froem the frust of approx £94k.

e A hugely positive Ofsted inapeaclion for Fiizharrys Schoel in Apell 2U43 demonstrated Pow e | fusi Suppof!a
the school and how i has improved,
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The purpose of the system of intemal control

1he system of imbernal contral is designed lo manage fisk 103 reasonabile Igwel rather than to. eliminaie all ek of
failure to achieva policles, aims and objectives. It can, iherafore, aaly provide raasnﬂahle and mot absalsda
asswiance of eﬁectfvenaeqs. The system of internal control i based on'an on- -going process designed do identify
and priorilise- the fsks 10 the dehievamenl of acadaray Trust policies, aims and objectves, o evaluale the
tikefihood of those sisks being realised and the impact should they be reglised, and 10 manage them efficienily,
effectively and ecanomically. The system of internal control has been in placs in Abingdon Leaming Trest for
iha period 1 September 2022 (o 31 Augusté 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statermenis.

The Trusi's Complinngce, Educajional Sianderds and Finanée commiiteas have received regular updates
regarding he impact of Covid 19 on the education of pupis and its financial implications. Although the schoals
raturned 10 fully face lo face educalion in this year, operations remained challanging and spend patierns
reflected this, mevertheless, we retained strong and effeclive financial governance through regular and, where
necassary, add:idional meelings of trustees.

All those in the Trust involved in governance again want to publicly thank every member of stalf {or their facus,
positivity, and determingtion in meking each pupil's education experience, through this latter phase of the
pandemic, as engaging and impactful 23 possible.

Trestess are vary gralaful to local governors in thair suppon for thair schools and communities, ensuring that a
high qualily of care, with great isaching qualily, has bean maintained, and that warm and ellective relaiionships
with gur children and voung naople. and their families. remain in place.

li hae baan anoiher challemging year and wa have collaciively supporied one anoithar and come through the last
12 monihs 8s & 3eofgad Tiust community.

Capacity to handle sisk

The Board of trustees has reviewed ke kay risks 1o which the academy Trus! i exposed, togather wilh the
operating, financisl and compliance controds that have heen implemanted 10 mitigate those risks. The board of
frustees i of the view hal thare is a formad on-geing process lof dentifyirg, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significand risks thal has been in place for the pesicd 1 Sep!ember 2022 to 31 Awmgust 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the anausl report and financial statements. This process is regularfy reviewed by
this Board of trustaes.

The riek and control framework

The Academy’s system of intennal financial conlrd is based on a framewark of regular management informaion
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a syslem of defegation and
accountakility, In particular, i includes.

. comprenensive budgeiing ang mondoring systems with an annual budget and penodic financial reports
which ara reviewed enc agread by the boand of Trusteas:

. regutar réviaws by the Finance and General Purposes Commnitiee ©f reparts which indicate financial
parformance ggainst the. forecasts mnd of maior purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmas;

. sctiing {nrgels to measure finangial ond other performance;
clgadly defined purchasing (ass0l purchase or capital invasiment) guidelines; and

. identificaticn and managamani of ricks.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
fA Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (continued)

The Board of Truslees has decided to buy-in an internal audii sarvice from exiernal suppliers

The reviewers role includes Qiving advice on financial malters and pertorming a range of chacks i the
Academy's finaincial syslerns. In particular the.checks carried oul in the current period included;

o Governance revigw by CST
e Low Carbon Skilla Funding Audii by Saix
o Financial Management and Govermance Revicw by ESFA,

On a regular basis, (he reviewer reports to tha baard of Trusteas through the finance and general purposas
commitiee on the Qpecallen of the systems of conirol and on the discharge of Ihe Trusiges' financial
responsibiliies. These raviews ware carried out and no material control issues were identified.

Roviow of offoctiveness

As Accounting Cfficer, tha Chigt Execuiive Othicer has responsibiity for reviawing the effactiveness of the
system of internal conirgl. During the year in question the seview hasg been informad by

. the work of the: internal audiior ard intarnal revievss.

. the financiaii managament and Qovernance seif-assesament process o the school resource management
self-3agessment tool

. ma work of the executive munagers wihin ithe academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of tha intemal control framework

The Accouniing Officer has been advized of tha implications of the rasull of their raview of the systom of internal
oconiral by fhe finance and genaral purposes commitlee and 8 plan to ensure conlinuous ampmvemem of the
svsiom i in plage. |

Approved by ocder of the members of the Board of Trustees on and signed
o Ihgir hehall by:
J Hopkins 2N
Jonathan Hophins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0) Fiona Hammans 20 Dec 2023 10:52:51 GMT (UTC +0)
Jonathan Hopkinsg Dl‘ Fltma Hamman«s
Chair of Truslees Accounting Officer

20 December 2023 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARKING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

BIATEMEN] OF REGULAKII Y, FROFKRIETY ANL LUMPLIANCE

As Accoaunling Qificar of Abingdon Lesmming Toual | have congidered my sasponsibility fo nolily the Acsdamy
Board of Trustoca and the Educaton & Ekillz Funding Agency (ESFA) of mealenal ircgularity, Impropricty and
RoR-COMPlaReD wWith Weris and eondilions of all funding roccived by the Academy. undor he funding ageeement.
in plaos batweon ke Academy ard the Secratary of State for Education. As parl af my consideralion | bave had
due régard 1o 1he requiremeénts of the Academies Finantial Handboaak 2023.

| confirm thiat | and the Academy Board of Trusiees are able 10 idemlify any malerial feregular or impeapar use of
all funds by the Academy, ar maiarial non-compliance wilh the ferms and comdilions of funding undar the

| confirm ihat no instances of malerial iregularity, Impropriety or funding non-compliancs hawe been discovered
10 date. I any instances are dantified afler the date of thi slalement, (hese will be nolifiad (o the board of
. Trusteps and ESFA _ . | L.

,>/\_/

Flona Hammans 20 Dec 2023 10:52:51 GMT (UTC +0)

Dr Flona Hammansg
Aceounting Officer
Date: 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON L EARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES® RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees (who are also the diveciors of the charilable comgany fof the purposes Of company law) aia
responsibie for preparing the Trusises’ Reéport and the financial sizlemants in accordance with the Academtas
Accounis Direction pubdished by the Education and Skilis Funding Agency, Uniled Kingdom Accounting
Standards {Uniléd Kingdem Generally Accaptad Accounting Practice) and applicabie law and rgulations.

Caompany law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each finandial . Under company law. the
Trustees must not approve the financial staiemenis unless they are satisfied thal they give a true and fair view
of the siate of affairs of the charitable comipany and of ils incoming resources and application of resources,
including its incomme and expendiure, for that peried. In preparing theae financial statements, the Trusices are
required to:

. salect suitable accounting policies and ihen apply theam consisianily;

. absarve ihe meihods and principles of the Charitias SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounis Dlmctncm
2022 1o 2023:

. make [uﬂ@&m&l‘llﬁ and a_aec.ummg eslimales Ihal are reasonable and prudeat:

. gigle whether applicable UK Accouniling Siandards have been followed, subject o any malerial
departures disclosed and explained in the fimancial slatements,;

. prépare the finandial slatemants on the going concarm basis urless it is inappropriate o0 prasusme thai the
charifable oornany will confiriue in bLsinoss.

The Trusiees are responsible for keeping adequaie eccounling records that are sufficient 1o show and gxplain
{he eharitable esmpany's iransactions and diselosa with reasonable accuracy at any fime the financial position
of tha chariiable company and enafble tham to ensure lhai Ihsa ﬂnancial sﬂaﬂemems eompty vaih ﬂhe Companles

reazonabls steps for me pYevaniion ana detacllm of fraud smd other wre-gulantnas

The Trustees are responsidie for ensuring 1hal in ils conducl and operation tha charitable company applies
financial and ofher cantrols, which confarm with the raquitamments bolh of propriaty and af good financial
management, They are also responsible for ensuring granis received from ESFAMDIE have been applied for the
purpcses imended.

The Trustess are responsitte 10f tha maimenance and Integnily of ke corporate and linancial inflormation
incheded on the charitable company’s website, Legislaiion in the United Kingdom governing the preparsiion and
dissemination of financial stalemenis may dillar from legislation in othar |urisdictions.

Approved by order of ihe members of the Bogid of Trustees and signad oni iis behalf by:
J Hopking

Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0)

e 'é'c;ﬁ s
Chair of Trusteas

Date: 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS QF
ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Abingdon Learning Trust {ihe ‘academy’) for the year ended 39
August 2023 which comprisa the Stalernent of Finandal Activiias. the Balanca Shest. the Stalement of Cash
Flows and the relaied notes, including @ summary of signficent accounting policies, The financial reporting
framewark 1hat has boen appliad in thoir praparation ic applicablo taw, Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepled A;:onumlnq Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The
Financlal Reporling Standard applicable in the UK and Ropublic of lratand', the Charitics SORP 2018 and the
Acadarmies Accounts Disaction 2022 1o 2023 issuéd by tha Education and Skills Funding Aganty.

In our gpinion the financial stelements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's altairs as at 37 August 2023 and of iis incaming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

o have been propefly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

o have been prepared In accosdance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charilies
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direclion 2022 to 2023 issued by ike Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with |nlernational Slardards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Qur responsihilities under those siandards are further dascribed in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our feport. We are independont of the Acadamy in accordance with the
ethicgl requirements that are relevant io our audit of the fingncial steiements in the United Kingdom, including
iha Financial Reporiing Council's Ethical Standard, and wa hawve fulfifled our othar athical responsibilities ir
accordance with these requirements. We believe thal the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and
appropriala to pravide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions rolating to golng concem

In auditing the financid sialements, we have concluded hat the Teustees' use of the going concesn basis of
aczounting i the preparahon af the financial statements is appropriata,

Based on (e work we have parformed, we have not identified any material unceriainiias relating o events or
canditions that, individually or coileciively, may cast significant doubt an the Academy's ability 10 continue ag a
going concern for a pericd of at least iwelve months from when the financial stalements are authorised for
issue,

Qur responsibililies and the responsitililies of the Trustees wilh respact o going concesn ara descnbed in the
relevant sections of this report,
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ABINGDOMN LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the informalion included in the Annudl Report other thar the finanrcial
statements and cur Auditors’ Reporl hefeon. The Trusteas are résponsibla for the ather information contained
within ih® Anfual Raport. Our opiniem on the financial statements does nol cover the ohey information and,
excep! [0 the extani otherviss explicilly sialed in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion theregn, Our responsibilily is to read the alher information and, in doing se, censider whether the
olhar information is matenally inconsistenl viith the financial sialemenis or our kncwledge oblained in the cowrse:
of the audil, or oiherwise appears to be materially missialed. If we Idenlify such matesal Inconsislencles or
apparens materigl misstalements, we are required fo delermine whether this gives rise 10 8 materisl
miselatertent in the financial statermants hemsobves, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that ihere is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are sequired 1o report that fact.

We have nothing 1o repart in this regard.
Oninion on other matters prescribed by the Comaanies Agt 2006

In Qur opinion, based on the work undertaken in ihe course of ihe audit:

. the Information given in the Trusiees’ Repor inclugding the Stralegic Repont for ihe financial yaar for which
ths financkal statements are prepared is consisient with the financial statémanis.

. the Trustees' Repor and the’ Strateglc Repost have been prepared In accordance with applicable lagal
fequiramaends.

Matters on which wo are roquired to report by éxception

In the light of our knowdedge and understanding of the Academy and i1s environment obiained in the course of
iho audil. we have nol idonlified satasial misstalaments in the Truslees” Report including the Strategic Raport.

We have nothing to repost In respect of the following matters in relation to which the Comparies Act 2006
requIces us to repor 10 ywou if, in our CPINIGN;

. adequate accouning records have rt been kept, of retums adequate for our audii have nel been
received from branchas not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are nol In agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

. certain disclosures of Trusiees' remunerafion specified by kaw are not made; or

. we havie nol recedved all the infarmation and cxplanations we faquire for owr audil

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Siatemen! of Trustees” Responsibliities, the Trustees (who are also the directors
of the Acadamy for the purposes of company law) are respoensible for the prepasadion of the financial statemerits
and fcr being satisfied that ihey give a true and falr view, and for such internal confrol as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matedial missiatement. whether
dueto fraud.or error.

in prépanag ihe financial stalements, the Truslees are responsible for as3es3INg the Academy's abilily to
continue as & going concem, disclosing. as applicable, matiers related fo guing concem and wsing the going
concesn basis of accounting unless the Trusiees either ntend 1o liquidate the Academy or 40 tease operslions,
ov have no realistic allermative but to do.so.

Page 34



VinuélSignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 3776

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors” responsibllities tor the audit of the tinamcial statemants

Our objeclives are lo obtain reascenable assurance aboul whether the financial stalements as a whole are free
from malerial misstaternent, wheiher due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an Auditors’ Repor that includes aur
opinion. Roagonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, bul is not @ guarantee that an audil conducted in
accerdance with 18A5 (UK) will ahways deloct @ moicrial misstatement when it exists, Migsialernents con arise
fromn fraud or evror and are considered mratavial if, individually or in ihe aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected {0 influence the economic decisicns of users taken on the basig of these financial staternents.

Because of the inkeren limitalions 61 an audit, there is @ risk thal we will NoL Jotecl all rregularities, iINChuding
those leading to B malerial misstatament in the financial statements ar non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increpses the more thal compliance with a law or regulstion is rermoved from the events and transactions
reflacted in tha financial statements, as we will be bess likely (o become aware af inslances of non-complianca.

The risk iz also greater regarding irreguiarities occuriing due 1o iraud rather than arror, as fraud involves
ingnlional concealment, forgary, callusion, omission ar misreprasentation.

tn respegt of ireoularities, inciuding fraud. ware as (Giiows:

o Enquiry of management and those charged with governanes asound aciual and potaniial [igation and
claims;

o Enquiry of managamsant and those charged with governanea {o identify amye material instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulalions;

o Raviawing financial statlament disclosures and fesling o supporing decumentation io assess compllance
with applicable laws and requlations,

o Perfarming audit work to address tha risk of imagularilies dua to managament aveerida of confrals, intluding
testing of journal eniries and other adjustmenis for appropriateness, evalualing the business rationale of
significant transactions cutside the normal course of business and raviewing accounting estimates for
evidence of bias.

A fusther description of our responsibilifies for the audit of ihe financigl sislemenis is localed on the Financial
Reporiing Council's website at: www fic org ukiauditorsrasaonsibilitles. This descriplion forms part of our
Auditers' Report.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
fA Company Limited by Guarantae)

!NDEFENDENT AUDITORSE' REFORT ON THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDOM LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This repert is imade salely {6 (ke Academy’s members, as a body, B acenedance wiilli Chapier 3 of Pasi 18 of the
Compenlas Act 2006, Our audii work has bean underinken 50 Thai wa might state o the Academy's mambers
1hose matlers we are required 16 SEte 1o thei in an Avdilars’ Repan and [0r nd olhar puipose. Ta Ihe fullest
axlant nermﬁued h%' tane, wa do not BCCAPL OF Assime ireamws;blm'y 10 anyons othar than the Academy' and its
mombiers, 35 § body, for our sudit wark, for $his ropord, or for ihe opinions we hove Tormed.

Wbt

Klichas! Bath BSc FGA' BEhA (Sanior Statutory Auditorl

for and on behalf of
James Cowpor Keoston Audit

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audilor
2 Communicaiions Road

faraanham Hisinmss Hark

Greenharn

Newbury

RG19 6AB

Date: 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ABINGDON
LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In acoordance with the lerms of cur engagement better daled 14 August 2023 and further io 1he requiregments of
lhe Education and Skills Funding Agancy (ESFA) as included in Ihe Acadamies Accounis Direction 20€2 tor
2023, we have carried out an engagement fo obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
ard income received by Abingdon Leaming Trust during the year 1 September 2022 1o 31 August 2023 hawve
been applied to the purposes Wentified by Partiament and the financial transaciions canform to the auihorilies.
whksh govern thant.

This repert is made sclely to Abingdon Leaming Trust and ESFA in accordance with the fermms of aur
engagemen letter. Qur work has been undestaken so that we might séale (o Abangdon Learning Trust and ESFA.
those mallers we are required to state in a raporl and for no oiher purpose. Ta the fullest extent permitied by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibilily 10 anyone other than Ablngdom Learning Trust and ESFA, for our
wark, {or this rapord, or for the conclusion we have formerd.

Respective responsibliities of Abingdon Learning Trust's accounting otticer and the reporting
Accountant

The Ateountitg Offices is rezpanadhle, urder the requiresnents af Abingdon Learning Trust's furding sgreament
with the Secretary of Siale for Educaiion dated 1 Sepiembar 2094 and the Academy Trust Handbook. axiant
from 1 September 2022, for ¢ngunng that expéndilyre dishursed and inggmo rocgived i@ appled for the
plirposes intended by Partismeant and the financial liangactions confodim o the auhodilies which goverm Lhedn.

Qur respongiblities for this engegement gre established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guldance and are o oblain limited assurance and reporl [n accordance with our engagement lelter ang the
requiremants of the Academies Accounls Direction 2022 to 2023. We report 10 you whether anything has coma
to our atlention in carrying oul our work which suggesis thal in all material respects, expendilure disbursed and
income recaived during the year 1 Saplembar 2022 10 31 August 2023 have nol been applied (0 purposes
intended by Parliamenl or that the financial transaciions do not confarm to the aulharities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide {or External Audiiors and
Reporiing Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We parformad a limitcd assufance gngagement 38
dafinod in ouf enfjaqement letlor,

The olveclive of & limited assurance engagement IS to pertorm such procedures as lo oblain information and
explanations In order 16 provide us with suflicient appropriale ovidence 10 axpress 3 Aegative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited &ssurance engagement is mode limited 10 scope than a reasonable assurance engagemeni and
consaquernily does nol enabie us to otlain assuranca thal we would become aware of all gignificani matters that
might ba idantifiad in a reasonable assurance engagemant. Accordingly, wa do nod express a positive opinion.

Our engagement inclixles examinalian, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the reguianly ard propristy of
ihe Academy's income and expendilure,

The work urdertaken 10 dras o our conclusion indudes:

1. rewewang of sinutes of mealings o! Lhe Hoard ol | rustees and other evidencs made availatle 1o us,
relevant to our consideration of regularity:

a revigw of the objectives and activities of ihe Academy Trust, with reference 10 the income sireams and
other information available to us as audiors of the Academy Trust;

testing a sampie of payroll payments to stafl;

tasting a sample of paymenis to suppliers and olher third pavties;

testing a sample of grants recelved and other income streams;

evaluating the internal condrol procedures and repariing lines. and lesting as appropriale; and

making eppropriate enguiries of the Accaunting Officer.

NEeRW N
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ABINGDOMN LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCDUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ABINGDON
LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS PFUNDING AGENCY {CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work. nothing has come 10 cur atlention which suggest in all maiernal respects the
expendilure dishursed and income received dunng he year 1 Seplember 2022 10 31 August 2023 has not been
applied (o purposes intended by Parliament and the financrl transactions do Aol conform 19 the authoridias
which govarn them.

/.,, (‘.;—,o.’ 3 oo A e ™

James Cowper Kreston Audit
Chartered Accouniants and Statubory Audilor

2 Communicalions Road
Greéanham Businass Park
Groenhasn

Newbusy

RG19 8AB

L3l 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
fA Company lei;ed by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Noie

Income from:
Donations and capital
granis: 3

Qther donalions and
capilal grants
QOther trading aciiviiies 4
Invesiments: 5
Charilable aclivilies
Total income
EXpenaiture on:
Charitable activitas 7

Total expenditure

Mot
Incomef(expenditure

Transfers between

funds 18
Net movemont in

funds before other
racognised
gainsi{iosses)

Other recognised
gainsi{losses):

Aciuarial gains cn

defined benefd

pension schemeas 27
Net movement [n

funds

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought;
farvwand

Net movement in
funds

Total funds carnisd
forward

Rastricted As rgstaied

Uncestricted) Restricied  fized assels Total Toal
funds funds funds fsnds fuinds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022

£ £ £ £ £

4447 135,852 138,340 278,639 (25.517)
373,024 65,668 - 433712 314,542
8,484 - - §.484 190
650,181 12,855,903 1,148,080 14,654,174 12,558,256
1,054,136 13,057,443 1,288,430 15,378,009 12,845 441
£81.989 13.253.899 985,504 14,831,482 14,136,860
581,989 13,283,899 995,584 14,831 482 14,136 880

453 47 (188.456) 290,836 546,527 {1.281.419)

(91.000)  (493954)  $44,954 - -

401,147 (890,410] 835,780 548,527 [1.201,419)
- 1,231,060 - 1,231,000 $.393.000
404,147 D4, 58U Y35, 750 1,777,527 5,101,381
338,445 (1,027 114) 26,719,730 26,031,061 20.920.480
401,147 540,580 835,780 1.772.527 5,101,581
738,582 (486,524) 27,555,520 27.808.588 26.031.081
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
(CONTINUED) ‘
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Stelement of Financiel Activilies includes all gains ared foszes recognised in the year.

| siataments.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

REGISTERED NUMBER: 07931886

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023
As restated
2023 2022
Noles £ £
Fixed asssts
Tangibla asseais 14 27,245,460 26,607,072
Current assets:
lebiors i5 426,180 412 252
Cash 81 bank and 1N hand 2,211,836 1,774,471
2638016 2186 433
Creditors: amounts falling due within ong
year 18 {1.170,132) (947,902)
Net curfant assets 1,467 684 1,238,521
Teotal asseis less current liabilities 20.713.344 27538 403
Crediiors; amaunis falling due after more
than one year 17 (108,756) (123.432)
Not assets excluding pansion liability 28.603.508 27.813.084
Dafined benefit pansion schama liability 27 {765.000% (1,782 000%
Total not assots 27.808,588 28.031,081
Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 1% 27,555,520 26.799.730
Resiricied income funds 19 0B ATE 754,885
RESINGIGH Iunds encluding penaegn A5566 15 27 863 998 27 474 616
Peansion raserve 6 (705,000% (1.782.000)
Total restrictad funds 9 27.054 608 25652 818
Unrestricted Income funds i5 738,883 358,445
Total funds 27.608,508 256.031,061
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaraniae)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07931886
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ABINGBON LEARNING TRUST
{A Companmy Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07931880

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

The fingncial siaiemenis on pages 19 lo 52 were approved and suthorised for B5ue Dy (he I fusieses and gre
signad on their behalf. by

J Hopkins

Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0)
Jonathan Hopkins
Chair of Trustees.
Date:

20 December 2023

~

! statemenis.
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ABINGDBON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Cash Alows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating aclivities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash eguivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year

Page 43

21

23

24,25

Ag restated

2023 2022

£ £

1.754 676 58%.768

{1.303.608) {63.804)
(13,403} 126,868
437 665 852,830
1,774 471 1,111,341

2,211,838

1,774,471



Vidué!Signature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 47/76

1.

1.1

1.2

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies

A summary o ihe prinCipal rocounting polielos adopled {(which have been applied consisienily,
gucepl whese noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncedainty, is set owl betow,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is 8 public banefil entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the hisloric cost convention in sccordance with the Financial Reporiing Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reparling by Charities:
Siatemeni of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standasd applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), iha Academias Actounts Diraction 2022 1o 2023 issuad by ESFA, the
Charittes Aci 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Ahingdon Leaming Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent ihose resources which may be used towards meeting any of
iha charitahle objects of the Acadamy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricled fixed assel funds are resources which are to be applisd lo spscific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or-created is held for a specific purpose.

Reslricted general funds comprise &ll oher resiricted funds received with resirictionsimposed by the
funder/donar and indiide grants fram he Department for Educalion Graup.

investment imcome, gains and [osses are allocaled 10 the appropriate fund.
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1.

13

14

ABINGBONM LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitiement 1o he Iunde, the receipt
is probatile and the ameunt can be measurad rafiably.

Grants

Grants are included in’ the Siatamend of Financial Activities on a receivabie basis. The balznce af
income received for specific purposes bul not expended Gumng the perfod is shown In the relevant
funds on the Batance Sheel Where incoma is fecaived in advance of meeling any patformance-
related condilions there s nol uncondiional entitlemant to the Income and its recegnition is deferred
and incleded in creditors as deferved income unlil the performance-ratated conditbors are el
Where entitlement occurs hefora income is received, the income is accreed.

Genraral Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Slalemeant of Financial Activities in the year lor
which 7l is receivable and any abatement in respaci of the year i deducled from incoma and
racugnisad as a liability.

Capital granls are recognised when there is entitlement and are not defered over the life of the
assét an which they are expended. Unspent amounis of capital granl are refleclad In the balanca in
the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations
Danations are racopnised on 8 recaivabls basie (where there are no parformeance-ralaied condiiions)
whigra (o rgcaipt s proatles and the smauni can He roliphly moasured,

Other income
Othar incoma, intleding he hire of laciliies. is recognised in the yaar it i% receivable and lo the
extanl tha Academy has pravided the noods or sarvices.

Where asseis ase received on the lransfer of an existing academy into the Trust, the transferred

assets are measured al fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet al the point when the risks
and rewards a! ownearship pass ta the Trust, which is on signing of the transfer agresment with the
transferring Trusl. An equal amount of income I8 recognised for the transfer of an existing academy
into the Trust within Income and donations and capital grants.

Expenditure

Expendilure is recognised onca thera s a fegal or consiructive ‘m!}galnun lo transfer ecoromic
benefil o 8 third party, it is prabable that a transfer of economic benefs will be required in
sotliesmant and he amount of the obligation can be measuted reliably. Expondiure is classificd by
activity. The cosla of each activity are made up of the toial of direcl cosls and shared costs,
including suppon cosls invalved in undafaking each activity, Direct cosig atiributable te a singla
activity are aliocaied diractly Lo thal aciivily, Shared costs which contribele to more than one aclivity
ard supporl cosls which gre not alributable 1o & single aclivily are apporiioned between those
activities on a basis consistant with the use of rascurces. Central stalf costs are allocaled on Lhe
basiz of ime spent, and deprecialipn chasges alfocated on the padion of the a3sel's use.

Expen-ﬁlﬂure ah charilabla activities are cosls incurred an the Academy's educational oparations,
including support costs. and those costs relating to the governarica of the Academy appodtioned o
charitaible aclivitios.

All expenditure i5 inclusiver of irvacovarabla VAT.
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1.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Going concemn

16

material ,uncenainties relaled to events or.conditions that may cas mgnlﬁc.am doubt on the abtllty of
the Acadamy lo continug as a going concarn. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial siatements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resourees Lo continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable fulure and there are no material uncerlainties about the Academy’s ability to
conlinue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In
preparing the financial staterments.

Tangible fixed assets and depraciation

All qasets coating £2.000 of more are capitalived aa targible fixed sssate ard arg garried al cosl, net
of depracialion and anv orovision {og imoairment. .

Premises subjeci io long lsase have beon valucd on & dopredinted reptacomont ¢o5is basis by a
qulifigd valuoe an the dale tha long leasehokd was iransfered inlo the Acedemy.

Whare 1angible tixed sssets have been acquired with the aid ol specilic grants, either frem the
gavernment or from the privale seclor, they are included in the Balance.Shaet at cost and
depreciated over their expecied useful economic life. VWhere there are specific condilions allached
t& e funding requiring the conlinued use of the asset, tha relaled grants are cradited lo a resiriclad
flxed assel fund in the Sistemem of Financisl Activities incorporaling Income and Expenditure
Account and carried {forward in the Balanca Sheat. Depreciation on the relevan! assets is charged
direcily to the reslricted fixed asset fund in the Statemeni of Financial Activities incorporating Income
and Expenditure Account.

Tangible fized apseis ara caried el cosl, nei of deprecigiion and any provieion fof Dwpairmant.
Dapraciation ls not charged on frashold tand, Dapraciation Iz providad i rates calculated 1o vaita off
the cosl of fixed asscls, less thoir eslimaled residuol value, aves thoif cxpected uséful ives on the
Toifowiraa beaos:

Long-term leasahold kand - gver ihe term of ihe lease

Long-term keasehold propesty - 2% per annum on ¢os! (Buildings anly)
Furniture and egquipment - over 5 -10 yaars

Plant and machinery - gver § yaars

Computer equipment = gver 3 yoars

hiotor vahickas - over 5 years

A review for impairment of a fixed assel is carvied oul il evems or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value. of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalls between the camying
vatue of fixed assels and their racovarable amounis are ecopnised as impairments. Impairmant
iosses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Actidties incorporating fncome and Expenditure

Acpoisnl.

1.7 Operating leases

Resiale under operating leases are tharged to the Statement of Financial Actiiiies incorporating
Income and Expandilure Account cn 8 straight fine basis gver the leasa term.
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1.

1.8

1.9

ABINGDBON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The Academy iz considered (o pass the lesis sel oul in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Flnance Act
2010 and therefore It meets tha definfifon of & charitable company for Uk corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is polentially exempt fram taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Pari 11, chapler 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of tho Taxatlon of Chorgeable Galns Act 1992, 1o the cxlent thai such Income o gains are
applied exclusivaly 1o charitable purposes.

Dobiors

Trade and other debiors are recognised ai the sefilement amount. Frepayments are valued at the
armount propid,

1.46 ¢ash at bank and I hand

Coszh al bank and in hand Inchudes cash and sharl-term highly liquid investmends with a short
maturily of three months or less fiom the dale of acquisiton or opening of he deposit or similar
account.

1.1 Liabllities and provisions

Liabliies ang provisions are recagnised when these is 8n oblgation ai the Balance Sheet dale as @

resull of 2 past event, it is probable that a ranaler af econamic benalil will be required In seltfement.

and the amouni of the sefllement can be estimated reliably. Liabililies are recognised al the amount

Ehm the Academy anticipates it will pay io zetile the debt or the ameunt it has receivéd as advanced
paymants for the goods or sacvicas it must prowvide.

Pravisions are messured &l the best estimate of tha ameunis ragquired 16 sattle tha abligation. Where
ha affaci of Iha time value of Money is Malarial. the provision is baged on the preaent valua Of thoss
amounis, discounied at he pre-tax discound ke that refiecds the rsks specific 1o the lingllily, The
urwirding of the discoun is recognised within inferes payable and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The Academy anly holds basic financial ingtrurients as-delined in FRS 102, The financial assels and
financial liabililies of the Acadamy and thair measuramenl bases are s follows:

Financial assels - lrade and oiher doblors are bosic linancial inslrumenis and are debi inslruraents
measured al amoriised cosl ss detdiled in note 5. Prepaymenis are not financial instruments.
P\i‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁt@ﬂﬂé to tha Acadaimy's wholly 6wnad subdidiary ads Reld at faca vaire 1868 aiy [MPaIrenL
Cash at bank is classified as a besic financiel instrument and is measured.at face value.

Financial liabiiias - trade creditors, accruals and olher creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured @t amorised cosi 83 dotailed In noles 16 and 17, Taxation and socisl:securily are not
inchuded in the.financial instruments disclosure definition. Defered intame is not deamed o be a
financial liability, as thé cash setflemeni has already faken place and there is an obligation §o defives
sarvinRg rathes ihan cash or snolhes inancial ingimiment.
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1.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continuad)

1.13 Penslons

Retirernant benefils 10 employees of the Academy arg provided Ly the Teachers' Pension Scheme
FTPSR) and the Local Government Pension Scheme {("LGPS®), These are defined benefit schames.

The TP is an unfunded scheme amd conisbutions are caiculaled anm as to spread ihe Cost of
pansions over employeas’ warking tivas with the Acadarmy in such a way thal the pansion cost is 8
subsiantially level percentage of current and fulure pensignable payroll. The contributions are
detarmined by the Govemment Aciuary on the basis of quadrannial valualions using. @ prospective
unii credit mathad. TPS is am unfundad multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers, Consequently, the TPS is trealed as a defined conribution scheme for
attounting purptses and the confribulions recognised in the pariod to which they ralate.

Tha LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the asseds are held sepacately from those of the
Academy in separate Truslee administered funds, Pension scheme assels are measured al (air
value and labililies are measured on an acluarial basis using the projected unit credilt method and
discounted at a rate equivaloni to the cerrent rate of relurn on a high quality cosporate bond of
aquivalent tarm and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valualions are cbisined al feast
risnnially and are updaiad al each Batance Shaet dale. The amcunts chargad to oparating surplus
gre the curren} service costs ard the. costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements:
and curtaiiments. Thay ara included as pard of stalf costs as incurred. Net interest on the ne? dafinad
benefit llahllnyfasqel, is 8is0 recognised in the Statemen of Financial Activities and comprises the:
inferest cost on {he defined bane! {ii obligailon and intesest come on the, scheme assets, calculated
by mutiiplying the fair value of the scheme assels at the begmmnq of the period by the rate used o
discount the benefit obligations. Thi diffefence batween the interest income on the scheme assels
angd the actual return on ihe scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and fosses.

Actuarial gains and lessas ara recognised immedialely in other recognised geins and lasses.

1.14 Agency arrangements.

‘The Trust acts as an ageni to Oxfordshire Secondary Schools Headteacher Aseociaiion {OSSHTA).
Payments received fom aombors as  subseriptions  and  subseguent  disburscmenis  of
administralion, conierence and meebng costs ara excluded from the Statement ot Financial

ACHVile3 A3 RS TFUSE G683 MOl Fdve GORIFAE GV IRG CRACIADIC ARphEMion o IRG RdS, Thé Rinds

received and pald and any oalances Neig arg disclosed i note 32.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Critical acggunting catimates and arcas of judgemont

Estimaies and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and ciher
faciors, inclding expeciations of fulure evants that arg beliewad to be fcasonable under he
clrcumsgignces,

Critical ag@dunting ¢SHIMALEs and aSUMpIONG,

The Acadamy Trusi makes esiimates and assumpiions concerning tha fulure. The resuliing accouniing
astimates and assumptions wil. by definibon. seldom equal the related actual resubls. The estirmates and
assumptions hal have o sighificant rsk of caustng o maierial adjusimont (o he carying ameunis of
assets and liahitiios within the ackd linancial yaar are discussed below.

Tha praseni value of tha Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefil fability depends on a
nember of factors fhat are determined on a&n aclwarial basis using a varely of assumplions. The
assumplions used in determinig the nel cost or income fov pansions include the discount rate. Any
changes in {hese assumgptions, which are disclesed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
penston lrability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which peofects rasults feom the lamest full actuarial
valuation parformed at 31 March 2019 has been usad by the acluary in veiuimg the pensions fiabiliy et 31
August 2023, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and & full
actuarial vabuation would irmpact on the canrging amount of the parsion lighiBly.

Critical areas of judgement:

The judgments thal have had & significant effeci on srmounis recognided  in the financial statements are
those concorning the chaice of depreciation policles and asscl ves.
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ABINGDOMN LEBARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

INCOIE FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Resirictad As restated
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Tosal Total
funds funds fends funds funds
2023 2023 202% 2023 2022
} £ £ LS E , £
Dorations 4,447 43659 - 48,106 41,196
DIE/ESF A capital grands - - 134,390 138,340 {66.713)
Granis - 92,194 - 2,193 -
4 447 135,852 138,341 278,635 {25,517}
Total 2022 as rastaied 1,728 35,874 (63.124) (25.517)
OTHER TRADING ACTVITIES
Unresiricted  Resiricied Toial Tetal
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
School uniform and services 19,648 A 82,274 §4.922 4,583
Renial income 75,180 - C 75,480 74 443
Oihear income including BASC 278196 3444 281,610 235.18G
373,024 &8.648 438 712 ¥14.842
Total 2022 . 251,401 63,411 314,512
INVESTMENT INGCOME
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
Bank intarest raceivabla 5,484 8,484 199
Total 2022 190 19@
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
JA Company Limited by Guarsntoe)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 1 AUGUST 2023

FUNDING FOR AGADEMY'S EDUGATIONAL OPERATIONS ¥

Unresiricted  Rastricted Tolal Tonal
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ E £ £
DFE/ESFA granis
Ganaral Annual Grani (GAG) - 11,561,341 11,581,341 10,784,793
Other DIE/ESFA granis
Pupil Premium - 266,959 266,959 384717
UIF S - 588,167 86,167 85,046
Oiher IEESF A revenue granis - 1,541,511 1,351,511 15,645
- 13,775,978 13,775,978  11,733,1( ¥
Other Goverament granis,
GFA allncaking - 219,214 243,244 124 929
- 219,211 213,211 124,929
Other income from the Academy's
educational operations 850,981 8.604 858,985 &58.149%
650,181 4400386903 14654174 42556.258
850181 . 14003603 14654174 {2 558255
Total 2022 227328 123208928 125562855
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Expenditugg
. As restated!
Stafl Costs Pramisea Ciher Taotal Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational
oparations:
Direct cosis ‘ 84,606,188 - 2646084 11,552232 10,818,172
Allocated support cogis 1,801,117 - 1,378,195 3,279,250 3.316.688
10,807,285 - 4,024 19  §4.831482 94,136,860
Total 2022 as rastaied 10,581 731 733,518 2821610 14,436.880

In 2023, of tha total expandiiure of £14,831,482 (2022: £14,138,860), £681,989 was 1o unresirictad funds
(2022: £407,194), £12253.869 (2022: £12,927, 548) waz to festicled funds and £995.584 (2022:
£802.117 ) wras to resisicied fized assate funds.

Analysiz of expenditure by aclivities

Educaiional cperations

Total 2022 as restalicd
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Activilies
underaken
direcily
2023

£

44,562,232

Suppor
cosls
2023

g

3,279,250

AS restated

Toaal Todal
funds funds
2023 2022
£ £

14,831,482 44 135860

10,818,172

3.318.688

14.138.880
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ABINGDON L EARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continucd)

Tetal

funds
2023

£

9.185.500
900,543
406395
375,084

I0G7
172,408
349,939
148,368

As rastated
Total
funds
2022

£

8,883,357
780.573
304,877
232,848

67,804
181,634
323079

11.552.232

Analysis of direci cosls
Activitiey
2023
£
Stalf cosis 9.185.9060)
Depreciation 900.943
Techmology cosis 406,388
School inps expenditure 379,024
Siaff expanses and other costs 30,387
GOther direct costs 172,408
Educalional supphies 349,939
Educational professional 1¢6S 146,365
11.882.232
Total 2022 as restaied 10,818,172
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1b.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of cxpenditure by aclivities {Continucd)

Analysia of supperd cosls

Pension finance eosts
Slaff cosls

Catersing supglies
Insurance

Energy

Cleaning

Rates

Professional
Maintsnance of premises and equipmant
Other suppart cosls
Govemnance costs

Total 2022 as rastated

Net incomef{expenditure)

Nel incomeli{axpandifura) for the year indudes:

OCperating lease ranlals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditorg for:

- audit
- other services
Staff

a. Staff cosis

As rastated
Tolad Total
Activilies funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
76.000 79.000 126,000
1,840,385 1,840,385 1,718,374
282,877 282.877 259 6566
58,520 58,520 51,229
177,882 177,882 150,884
231,465 231,465 228,736
31,004 31,004 49671
227.588 227 588 179,397
268,228 268,228 297,140
254,101 25810 230141
24.200 24,200 27,580
3,279,250 3,279,250 3.318.686
3,318,688 3,318,888
2023 2022
g &
F&4a 4743
900,943 780,573
20500 15,700
2715 2,500
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10.

Staff (continuead)

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Stafl cosie during the yesar were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social secwrily costs
Pansion cosis

Agency siaff costs

b. Btaff numbers

The average number of persons employed by ihe Academy during ihe year was as follows:

Teachers

Administration and support

Management
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2023 2022

£ £

7.884 508 7.317.964

812,858 747,829

1,916,658 2416954
10,714,022 10,482,747 .

93,263 08,984

10,807,285 10,881,731

2023 2022

No. Ne.

108 128

121 111

28 23

285 283
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ABINGDOMN LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
10. Siaff (continued)
c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employae benefiis (excluding emiployer psnsion ©osis) exceeded

£50,600 vas:
2023 2022
Mo. Mo.
In he band £80,001 - £70,000 5 5
In tha band £70.001 - £80.000 1 2
171 16 Baaried £80,001 - £90,000 2 1
1

fn the band £{006.0601 - £410,000 -

Pension contributions for the above employees amounted to £146.976 (2022: £155.053)in the year 10 31
August 2023,

d. Key management personnel
Tha key managemeni porsonna! of the Academy comprise the Trusices and the exccutive toam as listed
on page 1, The olal amounl of emplpyee benelits (including employer ponsion centribuiians and

amployer nationel insurance contribulions) recofwed by key management personngl for thelr services 1o
the Acedemny was £558.875 (2022 ; £628.452), . .

14. Related party transactions: - trustees’ remuneration and expenses

During ihe year anded 31 Augusi 2023, ENIL Trusies expenses hava beenimumsa (2022 - ENIL).

12. Trusices’ and Officers’ insuranege

The Academy Trust has opted inio the Depariment {or Education’s risk protection arangement (RPA}, an
ailernalive to insurance where UK government lunds cover fosses that arise, This scheme protects
Governors and officers from dlalms ariging from pegilgent acts. eerors or emissions oocurring whilst on
academy business, and peovides cover of up to £10,000.000. it iz not possible to quanlify the Governoes
and afflcers indemnily element (rom the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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13.

ABRINGBON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company LImited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Ceonbral Bervises

The Academy has provided the following canird services to ik academies duning the year!

Sirategic direciion

HR

Finance

Payrdl

Recrullmant

Audit

InSwrance

Govamance and Profassional

Health and Safety

IT Managed Provision (addilional charge]

The Academy charges for these services on the following basia;
6% of GAG

The actual amounis chargad during the yaar wara as follows:

Fiizharrys School
Johr Mazon Schaal
Rush Comman School

Total
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2023 2022

E £,
233,480 208,316
352.030 342,745
86,010 87,080
£83.500 846,171
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14.

18.

Tangible fixed assots

Cost or valuation
Al 1 Seplember 2022
Additions

Disposals

At 31 Augusi 2023

Depreciation

At 1 Seplember 2022
Charge for the year
On disposals

At 31 August 2023
Net book value

Al 31 Augusi 2023

At 31 August 2022

Dobiors

Trada dabiors

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

Leasehold Furniiure &

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Mani &

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

dMotor Computer

Cther deblors and VAT repayable
Prepayments and accrued income
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propedty equipment equipment vohicles equipment Total

: £ £ £ L3 £ £
28.557.070 170,290 4.182544 §&512 383957 30280413
55,196 115257 123504%  3.000 36832 1.448.40

- - - (6,200% - (6.200)
28,612,266 285,547 2397583 3 M2 423929 31,722.847
2,279,921 94,215 802420 5820 320244  3,582441
498,941 21,138 206802 2063  §1,902 800,946

; i - (8200 . 8.200)
2,778,862 415,356 1,169,331 1462 412148 4477487
25,833 404 170,481 12282862 1,820 414,783 27,245,460
26,277,149 76,072 280,418 853 63,753 26,897,972
2023 2022
£ £

82,412 22141

142,406 168,804

181,572 221,307

428,180

412,252
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16.

7.

14,

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Llmited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Creditors: Amounts falling diie within one year

Salix: I6an

Trade cradiiors

Cther taxation and social security
Pensions

‘Other crediiaes

Ascruils and deferréd income

Dafarred income oi 1 Septambar
Resources defarred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

Daforred income at 31 August

As rastated

2023 2022

£ £

13,678 13,403
252 651 80.976
183,322 174,477
197,138 181,011
10,131 &8.740
513,214 403,295
1.170,14& 247 902
2023 2022

£ £
224,829 170,417
288133 224.826

(224,829) (170.417)
289,133 224,829

Dafarred income relates io granis received in advanoa for universal infani fres schoot meals, rates relief

for 2023-24, schoal trips and other income,

Creditors; Amounts falling due after miare than oae vear

SALIX |gans:

Prior year adjustments

2023

108,756

As resiaied
2022
£

123,432

A prior yaar adjugiment has begn mada ag i§ was ideniifigd (hat monies received in reapani of 3alis koang
ware inciuded in incama, with loan repayments incheded with xpenditura. As a résull. pricr yaar creditors

The iwpact of this adyuslment in D prcr viar ig 10 iAot the Salix Wan bElance within cradivare by
£126,888, reduce exponditure by £13,134 and reduce incoming resources by £140,000. Net cash inflows.

fram opargiling acliviion arg dacraasad by £136.856,
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13,

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Btatement of lunds
As Restatad!
Balance at 1 Balance at
Septembar Transfers: Gaing/ 31 August
2022 Indmé  Expenditure infoul {Logsas) 2023
£ g £ £ £ £
Unrestrictad
funds
General
unresincied
funds 338445 1,004,135 {561,689) {51.000) - 739,592
Restricted
general funds
General Annusl
Grant ((3AM) 514804 11,581,341 [11.518269)  (493,954) - 363,722
Qiher
DIE/ESFA
grantis - 733421 (733.42%) - - -
Pupil prasaium S7,1498 266,058 (275,689) - - 56,218
UIF S - 36,167 {86,187) - - -
SEN income - 218,211 {219,211) - - -
Othear incoma - 210,344 {210,344) - - -
Sallx loan {126,866) - 13,402 - - (113,464)
Pension
resarve (1.782,000) - (244,000) - 1,3%1,000 (705,600)
[1,U47114) 13,057,443 (13,253,899) (493,954) 1.4%1,000 (486,524)
As Restaled!
Balance a1 1 Balance at
September Transiers Gaing/ 31 Awgust
2022 Inceme Expenditure irfout {Lossas} 2023
£ £ £ £ : £
Restricted
fixed asact
finds
Fixad assat
funds 26,697,972 - (900,843) 1,448,431 - 27,245,460
Devolved
formula capétal - 47 122 (84.651) 47 529 - -
Additional DFG - 91,218 - {8.835) - 82,382
Capiial
expendifure
fiom GAG 21,758 - - 205820 - 227678
Other capital
funding - 1,148,090 - {1,148,080) - -
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

19. Statement of funds {continuead)

Balance a1 1 Balance at
Soplember - Frangfers Gaing! 31 August
2022 Incomes  Expenditure irsout {Losses) 2023

£ & £ £ £ €
26.719.730 1.286.430 (095,504} 544,954 - 27,555,520

1,231,000 27,068,006

Totab
Restricted
funds 25692616 14,343,873 (14,249,493) 51,000
As Restaled
Balance a1 1
Sepiember Transfers
2022 Income  Expenditure infonut
LN £ & £

Tetal funds 26,031,061 45378008 (14,831,482) -
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Balance at

Gains/ 31 August
{Losses) 202%
£ £

1,231,000 27808568
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19.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds {continuad)
The spacific purposas fos which tha funds are to be appliad are as follows:
All ganeral inds are hald lor ihe purpase of educaiton in line with 1he academv's obiecives.
General annual grand to be spenl on éducalional purposec as specified by the ESFA. The olher
DIE/ESFA restricted fund represents other funding received from the governmeni which does not form
part of GAG bul i raceived in relation to specific purposes.

Pensicn rezerve deficit represents the filure pension funding requirements which wil B2 med from Tutude
EMDIBVEr PEASION CORHULIONS.

Olhver Income consisis of donations and other Income to be used as specified by the donor.
Resiricted {ixed assets are funds representing fhe amounts invasted in fivard asrais.
Devotved formula capital is 5K A grant monies o be spent on premises,

Transfers between restrinted, unrastricied and restricted fixed assats funds reprasenis funding of fised
as2el additions.

Under the funding agreement with the Secrelary of State, the Academy was not subject 1o alimit on he
amount of GAG it could carry forward a1 31 August 2023.

Comparative information in respeci of the preceding yeer i% 28 follows:

As rastated
Balance at As resiated  Assesiated  Balance at
1 September Asresialed Asrestated  Transfars  Gaing! 31 August
2021 Income Expendiiure Enfgut {Lossesh 2022
£, £ £ £ £ £
Generil
winsesincted
Tunds 254 962 480847 {407,194) - - 338,445
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grani (GAG) 484,852 10,784,793 (10,152.828) (302,213} - 814,604
Qther
DIEESEA,
granis - 518,623 (518,823} - - -
Pupil premium 74878 364 717 (372,445) - - 67,148
UIF S - 5,046 (65.046) - - .
SEN income - 124,929 {124,929) - - .
Otfver incoma - 569,810 {568.810) - - -
Rafiy loan {14,141) - {112,728} - - (126,856)
Covid-19
Catch-up
funding 73,143 - {73,143) - - -
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18.

ABINGDOMN LEARNING TRUST
(A Company LImited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statoment of funds (continued)

Fensien
resense

Restricted
fixed assot
winke

Fixed asset
feends
Davolved
formula capital
Additional DFG
Capital
expenditure
fram GAG
Privale sactor
capital
sponsorship

Total
Restrictad
Tundy

Total funds

Balance at As restated  As resinied  Balance at
1 September  Asrestated  As restated Transfers Going/ 31 August
2021 lncomes  Expendilure infout {Lossas) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
(7.237,000) - {6:38.000)% - 6,383,000 {1,782,000)
(6.618.270) 12,427,918 (12,927.549) (3022i3) §,393000 (1,027114)
As restated
Balance Asresiated Asrestated  Batance at
1 September Az restated  As 7esiated Teansiers Gamng/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure mnfout (Losses) 2022
£ g £ £ £ £
25,087 685 - (780,573) 1,490,860 - 26,687 672
32.301 45332 (21,544} {57.089) - -
1,282,772 26,955 - (1,289,727) - -
- - - 21,758 - 21,758
- 3,589 - ¢{3.589) - -
27,282,758 76,876 {802,117} 162,213 - 26,719,730
20664488 12,504,794 {i3,720.665) (140,000) 8333000 25832618
20,929,480 12985441 (i4,136.880)  (140000) 6393000 26.031,081

Page 63



VinualSignature Transaction Rei. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 6876

19.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Statement of funds {continued)
Total funds anzlysis by scademy

Fund Dilineas 41 31 Auguil 2023 vae dlocated as follows:

As restated
2023 2022
£ £
Rush Commen School 178,129 202,960
John Mason Schogcl 517,828 481,644
Fiizharrys Schaol 151,073 265,729
Ceanirzl funds 201,040 142 598
1 0fal BGOrG G asall funds and pomsion rosomve 1,048,088 1,083,334
Restricied fixed asset fund 27,555,520 26,719,730
Pension resarve {785.000) (1,782.000)
Total 27.608.588 26.031.061
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure insurred by each acadamy during the yoar wae as follows:
Teaching
and . )
educational Qiher Qiher cosls
supposrt siaflf  support s1alf  Educational excluding Total. Tolal
cosis. cosis. supplies depraciation 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
iRush Common
School 1,518,651 130,614 212,380 147,094 1,980,218 1.885.404
Johe Bfason
School 4215722 720 002 Q02,946 527 067 6,365,737 5,686,848
Fitzharfys
Scheol 2,736,047 471 881 786,673 308,528 4,304,129 3,532,950
Central funds 270,448 568,420 (129,274} 197,861 527456 1,303,085
Penson
axpenze 425732 (181.732) - 244,000 938,000
Academy 9,166,900 1,719,385 1,772,704 1,271,580 13930538 13,358,287
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20,

ABINGDON L BARNING TRUST
{A Company LImited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of et assets between funds

Analysls of net assets betwean funds - current year

Tangible fixed assets

Creditors due within ana year
Creditors due in mose than one year
Provisions for liabillies and charges

Total

Analyais of net asseta between funds: - prior yaar

Tangible fixed assois

Current asseis

Crediiors dua wiithin one year
Creditors dua in mosa ihan one yaar
Provisions far liabities and chargez

Total

Restricted
Unrestricted  Resiricted  fixed assat Total
{unds funds funds: funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £,
755282 - 26450 178 27,245,460
$47149  1,025525 1,065342 2538018
(583,789) (586,343) - {1.470,132)
20,850 (130,708} - (108,758)
- {745,000) - {785,000)
739,562 (486,524) 27.555.520 27,806,508
Restncted
Uprestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Toial
fuinds funds funds; funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ £ ¢ ¢
- - 25 687972 25647972
338,445 1,826,220 21,758 2,186,423
- (947,902) - (947,902)
- (123.432) - (123.432)
- {1.782,000) - (1.782,000)
338,445 28,719,730 26,031,061
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21.

22.

23.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company LImited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Reconcillation of ot incemal{expenditure) to not eash flow from oporating activilics

2023 2022
£ £
Net income/{expenditure) for the year {as par Statement of Financial
Activities) 546,527  (1.281.418)
Adjustments for:
Deprecigtion 900,943 780,573
Capital grants from DIE and oliver cppéial income (138,340} {73,287)
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (6,484} (190}
Pension adjusiments 244,000 938.00D
(Increase)decrease in deblors (13,928} 81,285
IreerCRse in creditors. 221,958 184,795
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,784 678 569,788
Cash flows from financing activities
2023 2022
£ £
Salfix loan receipts: - 140,000
Repayments of borrowing (13,403} (13,434)
Net cash (usod injfprovided by financing activities (13,403} 128.868
Cash flows from Investing activities:
2023 2022
& £
Dividends, inleresi and renis from investments 6,484 180
Purchase of ianglble fixed assets: (1,448,432) (1.490.860)
Capitel grants from DIE Group 136,340 73247
{Increaseldecrease in capital accrued income - 1,353,579
{63,804)

Nat cash used in investing activities (1.303.8608)
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ABNGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

24. Analysis of cash and cash eqguivalents

2023 2022
£ £
Caszh in hand and at bank 2,211,836 1,774,171
Total cash and cash equivalents 2201838 1,774,171
23. Analysis of changes im not dehi
A1

Septembar Al 31 August

2022 Cash flgws 2023

[ad £ £

Cash ai bank ard iy hand 1,774 171 437 6658 2,211,836
Debt due within 1 year {194, 444) {16,400% (210,8i4)
Dabi dva afier 1 yaar (123.432) 13,676 {100,756)

1,466,325 434,841 1.881 284

28. Cash investments

inddiicted within bank balences of £2.211.836 are amownds of £5¢0.000 in term deposits wilh a malurity
dnfe of 30 Sentgmbgr 2023,

27. Pension commitments

The Academys empioyees belong io two principal pension schemaes: ihe Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Oxfordshire County Council.. Both are multi-empioyer
defined bencfit schemes.

The laies acluasal valugiion of the TPS dalaled (o ha pafiod endad 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 34
March 2015,

Contributions amounting lo £187,138 ware payable 1o tha schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - K187 841}
and are included wilhin creditors.

Teachers' Pension Schame

The Teachers' Pension Seherme (TP8) is a slalutary, eontiibulory, defined benefil schame, governed by
ihe Teachers' Pengion Bcheme Regulations 2014, Membedship B aubérmalic for fullimeé féachers in
acadgmios. All toachors; have the option to opl-out of the TPS fodiowing enrolmignt.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which hoth the mémber and employer makes contributions, az a

percentage af salary - (hese contribulions are cradited o the Exchequer. Retlremenn and olker paRSsian
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parkiament.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Pension commitenonts (continuod)
Yaluation of the Teachers' Pension Schaime

The GOVErRMEent ACLUafy, USing NOmal aCuasia] prnciplos, ConGuets @ 107Ma) JCIUanal feviaw of [he
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cosi Cap) Directions
2014 publshed by HM Treasury every 4 years, The aim of the review is to specily the tevel of fulure
cantribulions. Actugrial scheme valualions are depandent on assumplions about he value of fulure costs,
design of benefils and many other [aciors,

The 31 March 2018 TPS sctuarial valuslion resulls were implemenied from 1 Sepiember 201%. The key
olgments of the valuation and subsequent consuitation arg;

. employer ConIVIbuLON rates sat at 23.88% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% adminisiraiion
fovy)

. fotal schame labilities (penaions currently I payment and the astimated cosl of luture benefils) for
service to the effective date of £218.100 milion and notions! assets (estimated fure contributions
fogether with the nofional investments held ai the veluation dete) of £186,100 million, giving a
netional past servica deaficit of £22 000 millton

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to delerming the notional investment return. The turrent
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CP1. assumed real rate of relurn is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real gammings growth i3 assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of refurn including earnings growlh is 4.45%,

The tatest actuarial TPS valuation resulls, 9 8t 31 dbdarch 2020, were released in October 2023. The
revised employer contribution raie, arising ITorm (his valuation, i due to be implemanted from 1 April
74

Tha empﬁdsker’s pension cosis paid to TRSin the year amounted 10 £4,270,476 (2022- £1,178,600).

A copy of the vaiation report and supporling documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(hips:fvawv teacharspensians. co.uk/mewstampbovars/201/04feachers-pansions-valualion-raport_aspx).

Undear the definitions sat out in FRS 102, the TPS iz an unfunded muli-employer pension scheme. The
Acadermy hag accounted fof S contributions 10 1he scheme a3 I il were a dolined contribution scheme.,
The Academy has sel cut above the information available on the scheme.

Local Geyernment Pension Schame

Ths LGPS is a funded defined benefit pengion scheme, with the asseis held in separaia Wrusiese
adménistered funds. The total conlribution made for the year ended 31 Augusl 2023 was £610,000 (2022
- £546,000), of which employers contributions toialled £475.000 {2022 - £427,000) and employees
coatributions tolatled £ 135,000 {2022 - £119.000). The agreed contribulion rates for future years are 9.3
per cant for employers and betwean §.5 and 12.5 per canl for employees,

As described in nole  the LGPS obBigation relates i the employees of the Academy, who ware fhe
employees fransferred as parl of the conversion from the mainained school and new employees whe
were aligible o, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligalion in respact of employses who
tranaferred on conversion refwesents their cumutative service a beih the predecessor schodl and the
Academy alihe balance sheet date, '

Parligment has agread, at the requect of tha Secratary of Sigle for Educaiion, lo 8 guaranies irat, in the

2vant of academy closure, oulstanding Local Goveirimant Pansion Schamae hiabilities éould be et by (e
Daparirment for Edueation. The guaranted came inba farea an 18 July 2013.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Cempany Limited by Guarantae)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2043
Pension commitmonts (continwod)

Principal actuarial assumptions:

2023

%

Rain of imcrease in salaries: 3.00%
Rale of increase (or pensicns in payment/inflation 3.00%
Discount raie for scheme liabilities 5.20%
inftation assumption (CPI) 3.00%

2022
%

3.05%
3.05%
4.25%
3.08%

The current mortality assumplions inchide sufficient allowsnce for fuivre improvements in mortalily ralés.

The assumad life expeciations on retiremend.age 65 are:

2023 2022
Yedrs Years
Retiring today
Malas 236 222
Femalas 255 24.5
Retiring in 20 vaars
Males 223 231
Famales. 284 281
Sensitivity analysis
The below sensiiiviiy analysis shows how with a change in principle asuspilions e schame oliligations
and subsequent kabdity would increase
2023 2022
. E£00D E000
0.1% dacreasse in Real Discount Rate ‘ 179 199
0.1% incraasa In the Salary Incrgase Rale 17 i7
184

0.1% increase n the Pansion Increase Rate (CR) 168

Share of scheme asssis

The Academv's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Az 31 August A1 39 Augusl

2023 2022

£ £

Equities 5,272,560 4 861,280
Oiher bonds 1,171,880 992,250
Propearly 732,300 595 350
Cash and ather liquid aasets ' 146,460 68,150

Total market value of assels 7,323,000
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2043

27. Ponsion commitmonts (continued)
Tha aciual rafurn on scheme asseis was £(81.000) (2022 - £{378.000)).

Ths amourds recognised in the Statement of Financisd Aclivilies are as follows:

2023 2022
E £
Curreni service cost {640,000  41,233,000)
Interest income 282 000 110,000
Interest cost {371,0600% (236.000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Finangial Activities (715.000% (1,365.000)
Changes In the presant valus of the defined benefit obligailons were as follows:
2023 2022
E £
At 1 September 8,397,000 13,644 000
Current service cost 840.000 1.239.0040
lnlerest cosi 371,000 238,000
Employea contribulicns: 135,00C 119,000
Aciuarial gains (§.503.000) {B.771.000)
Benefiis paid {103,000) {70,000)
AL 31 August 7.937.000 8,387.000
Changes in the fair value of the Academv's share of scheme asseis were as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September 8.515.600 6,407,000
ISl incomea 202 600 11§.000
Actuadal losses (272,000) (378.600)
Employer contributions 475000 427 600
Employes contributions 135,00C 118,000
Bengilits paid {103,000} {70,000)

Al 31 August 7142000 &8.815.000

Page 70



VinuéISignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 7576

28,

23,

1.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2042
£ : £
The amoeunt shown in the Balance Shest i5:
Preseni value of dafined banefit abligation (8,§18,00070 ¢B.387.000)
Fair value of scheme azaels 7.323,060 §,615,000
Defined banefit pension scheme liability (795,000) {1.782,000)

Operating [eate commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Academy hag commitmants to make fulure mirimem lease payments under non-
canceltabio oparating Icases as follows:

2023 2022
& L
Amounts payable:
Within 1 year 32,068 7819
Between § and 5 years: B3.688 -

88,686 7819

Related party transactions

Owing 1o the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, trangactions may take place with drganisations In which the
irustees have an interest. All fransaciions inveolving such organisations are conducted in accordanca with
iha raquiremenis of the Academy Trust Harndbook. including notifving the ESFA of all transactions made
on or alter 1 April 2018 and obltaining their approval where required, and with: the Academy's finangcial
regulations and normal procurament precadures ralaling 10 connacted and rélaled party transactions.

No reiated panly iransactions took piace in ihe penod of account, othar than cerain Trustees'

remuneralion and expanses diready disclosed in node 11,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company underiakes 1o contribuie 1o the assels of the Company in the
evant of il being wournd up while hefshe is 8 member, or within one year after hefshe ceases o be a
membar, such amournt as may be required. not exceeding €10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceasas to be a membar.

Post balance sheeat events

As at 1 Septembar 2023 Rush Common pre school joined the Abingdon Leazning Trust
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantoe)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Agency arrangements
The Abingdon Leaming Trust acts a5 agont for OGSHTA. Included within the acoounts is a bolonco of

£10.178 (2022 £7.795) in relation to monios hold on behall of OSSHTA. Paymenis recdived of £24 415
(2022: £4,787) and dishursomonts mado of £14,237 (2022 £4,787) arg oxcludgd from the accournts.
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